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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited (*the Company™), which
comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended. and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us. the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, and loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Awditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As more fully described in Note 36 to the financial statements, the extent to which the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic will have impact on the Company’s financial performance including the Company’s estimates of
impairment of assets and future cashflows, are dependent on future developments, the severity and duration
of the pandemic. which cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company has considered the context of the
pandemic in applying the assumptions used to determine the future cashflows. The impact assessment of
COVID-19 is a continuing process. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to the
future economic conditions.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,
Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's report. but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board's report is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor's report.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. When we read the Board's report. if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and
take necessary actions as required under applicable laws and regulations.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design. implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal  financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records. relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management and Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and.
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or. if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors” Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act. we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) [n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account

d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

¢) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B™.
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(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
I'l of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2021 on its
financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 33 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable loss.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 have not been
made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended March
31,2021,

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid/ provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon
by us.

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248 W/W-100022

/

Satish Vaidyanathan

Partner

Membership No: 217042

ICAI UDIN: 21217042AAAABBS800
Place: Chennai

Date: May 19, 2021
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(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by which all fixed
assets are verified on a yearly basis. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noted on such verification,

(¢)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no immovable properties held in the name of the Company.

(i1) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. The procedures of
physical verification followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size
of the Company and the nature of its business. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable. The discrepancies noted on verification between physical stock and book records were
not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

(iii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) of the said Order
is not applicable.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loan or made any investments or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (iv) of the said Order is not applicable,

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder to the extent notified. Accordingly. paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the activities of the Company and accordingly,
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of an examination of the
records of the Company, amounts deducted/acerued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and services
tax, cess and other material statutory dues have not generally been regularly deposited by the
Company with the appropriate authorities. There have been delays in deposit with respect to
provident fund ranging from | to 75 days, employees” state insurance ranging from 1 to 97 days.
income tax ranging from 27 to 60 days and goods and services tax ranging from 1 to 34 days. As
informed. the delays in deposit have been primarily due to the pandemic and the dues have been
since paid. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of sales tax, service
tax, value added tax, duty of customs and duty of excise.

The extent of the arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable is as follows:

Name of | Nature of the | Amount | Period to which | Due Date Date  of
the Statute | Dues (Rs.) the amount Payment
(O S . [0 relates ) T v =k
The Income | Fringe benefit | 0.36 Assessment March 31, 2008 | Yet to be
Tax Act, | tax Years  2008-09 | and March 31, | paid
1961 and 2009-10 2009
= A _respectively
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(b)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(x1v)

(xv)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no dues of income tax, sales
tax, service tax. duty of customs, goods and services tax and luxury tax which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of a dispute, except for items as set out below

Name of the Nature of | Amountin | Period to which Forum where

Statute dues Rs. Lakhs | the amount relates | the dispute is pending

Tamil Nadu | Luxury 196.38 | Assessment Year Madras High Court
Luxury Tax Act | tax 1998-99 10 2005-06

The Income-tax | Income 10.83 | Assessment year The Commissioner of
Act. 1961 - 2018-19 Income Tax (Appeals)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not
have any outstanding loans or borrowings to any financial institution, bank, government or debenture
holders during the year.

The Company did not raise any money by initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans during the year, Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us, no fraud by the Company or any material
fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not paid/ provided for any managerial remuneration
during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (ix) of the said Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has entered into transactions with related parties in
compliance with the provisions of section 188 of the Act where applicable. The details of such related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company. the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of
the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company. the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

j{‘”' B S R & CU. lJlJP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

/

Satish Vaidyanathan

Partner

Membership No: 217042
ICAI UDIN: 21217042AAAABB5800
Place: Chennai

Date: May

19,2021
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Sterling Holidays
(Ooty) Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31. 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has. in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets. the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act. 2013 (hereinafter
referred to as “the Act™).

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance re ¢lldll\£ prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition. use. or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Jor BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248 W/W-100022

e

Satish Vaidyanathan

Partner

Membership No: 217042

ICATUDIN: 21217042AAAABBS800
Place: Chennai

Date: May 19, 2021



Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited
Balarce Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(ALl amounts in Rs. lakhs, untess otherwise stated)

As at Asat
ke March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Assets
Nan-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 2310 15.65
Right of use assets 38 - 5.06
Finaneial assets
Other financial assets 5 18.05 24.13
Other tax assels 5A 9.79 7.68
Deferred tax assets 14 63.71 911
Total non-current asscts 114.65 61.63

Current assels
Inventories 6 826 7.32
Financinl assels

1. Trade receivables 7 5.44 33.86
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 8 0.95 2.02
iif. Other financial assets 5 15.67 11.74
Other current assets 9 58.59 28.81
Total current assets §8.91 83.75
Total assets 203.56 I-i."..!-li_.
Equity and labilities
Equity
Equity share capital 10 5.00 5.00
Olher equity
Reserves and surplus 11 {580.53) (399.35)
Other reserves 12 68.58 68 58
Total equity {506.95) {315.77)
Liabilities
MNon-current liabilities
Provisions
i, Provision for employee benefit obligations 15 12,75 14.86
Total non-current liabilities 12,75 14.86
Current labilities
Financial liabilitics
i. Borrowings 13 486.14 122 63
ii, Trade payables
Dues to micro and small enterprises 16 4.61 .88
Dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 16 8191 227.53
iii. Other financial liabilities 17 30.67 2280
iv. Lease liahility kk3 531
Provisions
i. Provision for employee benefit obligations 15 5.91 577
il Other provisions 18 036 0.36
Current tax liabilities 19 21.61
Other current linbilities 20 49.40
Total current liabilities 456.29
Total liabilities 47115
Total equity and liabilities o 14538
Significant accounting policies 1.3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date
Jor BS R & Co. LLI For and on behatf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sterling Halidays (Ooty) | .ilpllcd
Firm Registration Number: 101 248WAV-100022 (CIN USST02 TN 1wsar Lo s'i-i-i}
P X
3 Snie
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Satish Vaidyanathan M Balisubr .trlunfrun

Pariner “Thrector Ihrector
Membership No.: 217042 DIN No.: 06646158 DIN No.: 03088801
Place: Chennai Place: Chennai

Dhate: May 19, 2021 Date: May 19, 2021




Sterliog Holidays (Qoty) Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounis in Rs. lakhs. unless otherwise stuted)

Noté For the year ended For the year ended
8 March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Income
Revenue from operations 21 46705 1,660.09
Other income 23 69.87 90.84
Total income 536.92 1,750.93
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 23 3796 109.01
Employee benefits expense bl 167.20 325.56
Finance costs 25 47.03 15.74
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 289 7.23
Other expenses 27 518.07 1,200.42
Total expenses 77315 1,657.96
Profit / (Loss) before tax T AL (236.23) N 91,97
Income tax expense 28
Current fax 4.62 21.61
Deferred tax (54.60) 1.07
Profit f (Loss) for the year (8628 1029
Other comprehensive income
Ttems that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations 5.07 1.56
Income tax relating to this iem ¥
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 5.07 1.56
Total comprehensive income for the year - __ (181.18) 71.85
Earnings per share (Face value of Rs. 10 each)
Basic and anti-diluted camings per share (in Rs) (372.50) 140,58
Significant accounting policies 1.3
The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financia! statements
As per our report of even date
for BSR & Co. LLP For and an behalf of the Board of Directurs of
Chartered Accountants Sterling Holidays (Ouoty ) Limited
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022 (CIN LI3ST02TNIOSOPLC Iitijsési]
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Satish Vaidyanathan Taniesh :'Nll:nmm;:.lm M Bulasubrananivan
Partner Lhrector Direetor
Membership No.: 217042 DIN No.: 06646158 DIN No.: 03088501
Place: Chennai Place: Chennai

Date: May 19, 2021 Drate: May 19, 2021
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Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the yesr ended March 31, 2021

(ANl amounts in Rs. lakhs, nnless otherwise stated)

1} Equity share capital

Balance as 2t Apnl 1, 2019

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2020

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at March 31, 2021

1l

=

her equity

Balance as st April 1, 2019
Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

Balance as at March 31, 2020
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

DBalance as at March 31, 2021

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes ere an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

for BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Acconmants

Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

oo

Satish Vaidyanathan
Pariner
Membership No.: 217042

Place: Chennai
Date: May 19, 2021

Notes

&2
&2

& 12
& 12

Heserves and surplus

Note Amount
5.00

1o _
5.00

11 .
5.00

Other reserves

Contribulion from

Retained earnings holding company Total
(471.20) 68.58 (402.62)

10,29 - 70,29

156 1.56

(399.35) 68,58 (330,77)

(186.25) . (186.25)

507 . 5.07

TS (5808 6858 (511.95)

For and on behalf of the Dowgol Directars of
Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Ligited
(CIN USS102 18195911 Cork344)

%

Hhrecton

DIN No.: 06646158

Place: Chennai
Date: May 19, 2021
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Sterling Holidays {Ooty) Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Al amounts in R, lakhs, wiless othenyise statecd)

Cash Now from operating activities
Profit before income tax

Adjustments for

Depreciation

Income from lease termination

Finance costs

Operating cash Mlow before working capital changes
Chunge In operating assets and labilities
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in inventorics
(Increase)decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/{decrease) in employee benefit obligations
Increase/(decrease) in other current labilities

Cash penerated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities
Cash Nows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from loan taken from holding company
Repayment of loan from holding company

Interest paid

Payment of lease liability

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement;
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following

Cash and cash equivalents
Balance as per statement of cash flows

Significant accounting policies
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Sterling Holiday (Ooty) Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.1.

1.2.
1.2.1.

1.2.2.

1.2.3.

1.2.4.

Reporting entity

Sterling Holiday (Ooty) Limited (the “Company”) is engaged in providing resort operations and
maintenance services [being leisure hospitality services]. Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited (‘Parent
company’) holds 98% of the share capital. The ultimate holding company is Fairfax Financial Holdings
Limited, Canada.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies
Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 19, 2021

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
e certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value (Refer Note 29).

*  defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value (Refer Note 15).

As at year ended March 31, 2021 the Company has incurred losses of Rs. 186.25 lakhs and has accumulated
losses of Rs. 580.53 lakhs (which have fully eroded the net worth of the Company) as at the balance sheet
date. The Company has considered various internal and external sources of information, up to the date of
approval of the financial statements, in determining the potential impact on the financial position and
business operations of the Company including those arising from of the COVID-19 pandemic. Based on the
future business plans, approved cash flow projections for the next 12 months and letter of financial support
provided by the parent company, the Company believes that it would be able to meet its financial
requirements and no adjustments would be required in respect of the carrying values of assets/liabilities.
Accordingly, these financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker.

The Chairman-Managing Director (CMD) of the Parent company has been identified as the chief operating
decision maker of the Company who assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and
makes strategic decisions. Refer Note 35 for segment information presented.

Current/ Non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature
of products and services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for t
purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Foreign currency transaction

a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency"). The financial statements
are presented in Indian rupee (Rs.) which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

- \/\b) Transactions and balances
\ .\  Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the

.| dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.




Sterling Holiday (Ooty) Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3.
1.3.1.

1.3.2.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step approach to revenue recognition that includes identifying
contracts with customers, identifying performance obligations, determining transaction prices, allocating
transaction prices to performance obligations and recognising revenues when or as the performance
obligations are satisfied.

Income from resort operations and maintenance services (being leisure hospitality services) comprising of
sale of food and beverages, room rentals and other services are recognised when these are sold and when
services are rendered.

Contract balances

(i) Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services rendered to the customer. If the
Company renders services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is
due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

(ii) Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company
has received consideration has received consideration, or for which an amount of consideration is due
from the customer. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under
the contract.

Income taxes

The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Income tax for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in ‘Other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the tax is recognised in ‘Other comprehensive income’ or directly in equity,
respectively.

(a) Current Tax:

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous
years. Interest income/ expenses and penalties, if any related to income tax are included in current tax
expense.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. The company offsets the current tax assets as against
the liability for provision for tax.

(b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amount, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at
the time of the transaction.




Sterling Holiday (Ooty) Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3. Significant accounting policies (contd.)

1.3.2. Income taxes (contd.)

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised. Deferred taxes on items classified under Other comprehensive income (‘OCI') has been
recognised in OCI.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates
expected o apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be
received or settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.

1.3.3. Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 Leases with effect from April 1, 2019 and the Company has elected
to measure right-of-use asset for all leases at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately
before the date of initial application. At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in Ind AS 116.

As a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and
an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company
by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a
purchase option. In that case the right of use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying
asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right of
use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of
the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are
not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

— fixed payments, including in substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

—amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option,

and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to termmate{‘:r'o%é}\




Sterling Holiday (Ooty) Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3.

1.3.3

1.34.

1.3.5.

1.3.6.

1.3.7.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Leases (contd.)

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or
if there is a revised in substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right of use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right of use asset
has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right of use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property,
plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings’ in the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company has clected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value
assets and short-term leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Inventories

Inventories comprising of provisions, perishables, beverages and operating supplies are stated at lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in-first out (FIFO) method. The cost
comprises of purchase price, non-refundable taxes and delivery handling cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale. Inventories are written down for slow moving/ non-moving items, wherever necessary.




Sterling Holiday (Ooty) Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3.
1.3.8.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)

Investments and other financial assets

a)

b)

Classification:
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
a. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and
b. those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments,
this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Measurement:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the

valuation techniques as follows.

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as
far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different
levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.




Sterling Holiday (Ooty) Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3.
1.3.8

Significant accounting policies (contd.)

Investments and other financial assets (contd.)

Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the
Company classifies its debt instruments:

)

Amortised cost:

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets
is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where
the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through
OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through profit or loss:

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through
profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in
the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 30 details how the Company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FYOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. In all cases, the maximum period considered when
estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is
exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both

quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.




Sterling Holiday (Ooty) Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3. Significant accounting policies (contd.)
1.3.8  Investments and other financial assets (contd.)

d) De-recognition of financial assets:
A financial asset is derecognised only when
i.  the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
ii.  retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is
derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

1.3.9. Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separaie asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as
a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Based on technical evaluation carried out, depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided, on a
pro-rata basis, on Straight Line Method (SLM) over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which equates
to the useful lives prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, as follows:

Asset class Useful life (in years)
Plant and machinery 15
Furniture and fixtures — general 10
Furniture and fixtures — others 8

Office equipment 5
Computer equipment — Servers & Network 6
Computer equipment — Desktop, laptop and end-user items 3

Electrical installations 10

Assets constructed on leasehold land/leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of lease
or its estimated useful life, whichever is lower.

The asscts® residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses on disposals ar¢ determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in profit or loss within other gains/ (losses).

1.3.10. Trade and other payables

These amounts represent unsecured liabilitics for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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1.3.

1.3.11.

1.3.12.

1.3.13.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a
material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the
liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial
statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. A provision is recognized if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations is more probable than not,
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure require to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Employee benefits
a) Defined contribution plan

Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined contribution plan as the
Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

b) Defined benefit plan

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of
an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The Company’s
liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) by an independent actuary
at the end of each year. Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they oceur, directly in other
comprehensive income.
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1.3. Significant accounting policies (contd.)
1.3.13. Employee benefits (contd.)

¢) Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year are treated as short-term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same
is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount
expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year are treated as other long-term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is
actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) by an independent actuary at the end
of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which they arise.

1.3.14. Earnings per share

a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
e The profit attributable to owners of the Company
* By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares (Note 39).

b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:
e the afier-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and
e the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2, Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off and presented in lakhs
with decimals as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.

3. Critical estimates and judgements:

In preparing these financial statements, management has made Jjudgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised prospectively.

The areas involving critical cstimate or judgement are:

Note 15 - The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

Note 14 - Recognition of deferred tax assets

Note 36 and 1.2.1 — Going concern and impact of COVID-19
Note 38 - Leases
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Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2021

{All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

5  Other financial assets
Security deposits
Unbilled revenue
Other receivables
Total

SA  Other tax assets
Taxes receivable
Total

6 Inventories
Food and beverages
Operating supplies
Total

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current Non current Current Non current
- 18.05 - 24.13
3.04 - - -
12.63 - 11.74 -
15.67 18.05 11.74 24.13
—
As at As at

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

9.79 7.68
9.79 7.68
2.40 325
5.86 4.07
8.26 7.32

Due to outbreak of COVID-19, Management has performed impainment assessment of all inventories and ascertained that there are no items as at March 31, 2021 with shorter

shelf-life which need to be written off.

7  Trade receivables
Current - Unsecured
Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: Loss allowance
Total

Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below:
Total trade receivables from related parties (Refer Note 32)

Loss allowance
Net trade receivables

The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 30.

8  Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in current accounts
Cash on hand
Total

9  Other current assets
Prepaid expenses
Balances with statutory authorities
Total

<This space is intentionally lefi blank>

5.44 33.86
4,55 4.55
9.99 38.41
(4.55) (4.55)
5.44 33.86
0.38 3.64
0.38 3.64
0.66 1.94
0.29 0.08
0.95 2.02
12.11 11.20
46.48 17.61
58,59 28.81




Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10 Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capital

Authorised March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
0.5 lakhs (March 31, 2020: 0.5 lakhs) equity shares of Rs.10 each 5.00 5.00

Issued, subscribed and paid-up

0.5 lakhs (March 31, 2020: 0.5 lakhs) equity shares of Rs.10 each 5.00 5.00

As at March 31, 2021 5.00 5.00

Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Number Amount Number Amount
in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs
Equity shares
At the commencement of the year 0.50 5.00 0.50 5.00
Shares issued during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 0.50 5.00 0.50 5.00

All issued shares are fully paid up.
Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets on
winding up. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. The voting rights of an equity shareholder are in proportion to
his/its share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets
of the Company, in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company (i.e., parent of the Group) and/or their subsidiaries/associates

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Number Amount Number Amount
in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each held by the Holding Company 0.49 4.90 0.49 4.90
Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Number % of total shares Number % of total shares
in lakhs in class in lakhs in class
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each held by
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited (Holding Company) 0.49 98%

<This space is intentionally left blank>




Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
11 Reserves and surplus

Retained earnings (580.53) (399.35)
Total (580.53) (399.35)

Movement in reserves and surplus balances is as follows :

a) Retained earnings

Opening balance (399.35) (471.20)
(Loss) / Profit for the year (186.25) 70.29
ltems of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings

- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation 5.07 1.56
Closing balance (580.53) (399.35)

12 Other reserves

Contribution from holding company

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Opening balance 68.58 68.58
Additions during the year = =
Closing balance 68.58 68.58

The loan received from holding company has been measured at fair value by discounting the expected future cashflows at a discount rate based on the risk and other
factors applicable to the Company's cashflows. The difference between the cartying value and the fair value has been considered as capital contribution by the holding
company considering the substance of the transaction.

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

13 Current borrowings

Unsecured loan from holding company 486.14 122.63
Total 486.14 122.63

Unsecured loan from holding company

Unsecured loan amounting to Rs. 486.14 lakhs outstanding as on March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020: Rs. 122.63 lakhs) from Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited (holding
company) carries an interest rate of 10% and is repayable on demand.

Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Particulars March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Current borrowings 486.14 122.63
Net debt 486.14 122.63
Particulars Total
Balance as at April 1, 2019 179.20
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 2,010.36
Repayment of borrowings (2,066.93)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 122.63
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 1.216.28
Repayment of borrowings (852.77)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 486.14

14 Deferred tax assets

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Deferred tax assets

Property, plant and equipment 0.42 0.46
Unabsorbed depreciation allowance and business loss carried forward 56.67 .
Provision for employee benefits 6.62 8.65
Net deferred tax asset as per the balance sheet (63.71) (9.11)

Unrecognised deferred tax assets = =

Movement in deferred tax assets

Property, plant and  Provision for Unabsorbed Total
equipment employee depreciation
benefits  allowance and
business loss
carried forward

" At April 1,2019 0.50 9.68 - 1018
" Movement during the year (0.04) (1.03) - (1.07)
At March 31, 2020 0.46 8.65 - 9.11
Movement during the year (0.04) (2.03) 56.67 54.60

At March 31, 2021 0.42 6.62 56.67 63.71




Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

15 Provision for employee benefit obligations

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Compensated absences 191 349 5.40 2.10 4.18 6.28
Gratuity 4.00 9.26 13.26 3.67 10.68 14.35
Total 5.91 12.75 18.66 5.77 14.86 20.63

(i) Compensated absences
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Current compensated absences expected to be settled within the next 12 months 1.91 2.10

(i) Post employment obligations

a) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The
amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of

service.
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Opening present value of obligation 14.35 13.56
Current service cost 312 2.69
Interest expense 0.86 0.92
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 3.98 3.61
Remeasurements

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions - (0.10)

(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 0.33 (0.15)

Experience (gains)/losses (5.40) (1.31)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (5.07) (1.56)
Benefit payments - (1.26)
Closing present value of obligation 13.26 14.35

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:
Unfunded plans 13.26 14.35

(iii} Principal actuarial assumptions used in valuation of gratuity

Discount rate 6.39% 6.15%
First year- 0%
0,
Salary growth rate 5% thereafter-4%
Attrition rate 30% 30%
Estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in employment
market.

(iv) Sensitivity analysis
The below table summarises the impact of movement in key assumptions on the present value obligation as at the balance sheet date:

a) Gratuity March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Discount rate:
+ 100 basis points (0.34) (0.38)
- 100 basis points 0.39 0.44
Salary escalation rate:
+ 100 basis points 043 0.49
- 100 basis points (0.40) (0.44)
b) Compensated absence
Discount rate:
+ 100 basis points (0.13) (0.15)
- 100 basis points 0.14 0.15
Salary escalation rate:
+ 100 basis points 0.17 0.19
- 100 basis points (0.15) (0.18)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the
assumption may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to the significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of defined benefit
obligation calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied when calculating the defined benefit liability in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

{v) Defined contribution plans

The Company has also certain defined contribution plans, Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of gross salary #
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no i
any constructive obligation, The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is Rs. 11.24 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs.16.63 lakhs). z



Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(A4ll amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

16

17

18

19

20

Trade payables

Dues to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 37)

Dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Total

The Company's exposure to liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 30.

Other financial liabilities

Current

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Security deposits

Others

Other provisions
Provision for fringe benefit tax
Total

Current tax liabilities
Provision for income tax
Total

Other current liabilities

Salaries, wages, bonus and other employee payables
Contract liability - Advance received from customer
Statutory dues payable

Total

As at As at
March 31,2021  March 31, 2020
4.62 0.88
81.91 227.53
86.53 228.41
= ———1
1157 332
19.10 19.16
- 0.32
30.67 22.80
0.36 0.36
0.36 0.36
—_—
- 21.61
- 21.61
16.83 28.00
63.78 18.47
7.54 2.93
88.15 49.40
<This space is intentionally left blank>
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Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

21
(a)

(b)

22

23

24

25

26

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Revenue from operations
Disaggregation of revenue:
On the basis of nature of goods or services:
Sale of products
Food and beverages 111.45 347.68
Sale of services
- Room rentals 336.20 1,168.28
- Others 11.89 119.90
Other operating revenues
Service charges 7.51 2423
Total 467.05 1,660.09
On the basis of timing of transfer of goods or services
At a point in time 130.85 491.81
Over a period of time 336.20 1,168.28
467.05 1,660.09
Movement in contract liabilities as per Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balance 18.47 -
Additions during the year (net) 63.78 18.47
Income recognized during the year (18.47) -
Closing balance 63.78 18.47
Contract liabilities pertain to advances received from customers which will be recognized as revenue when the service is rendered.
Other income
Income from skill development training - 53.42
Management services income 68.17 35.65
Scrap sales 0.11 0.73
Interest income 0.33 1.04
Lease income termination 1.26 -
Total 69.87 90.84
Cost of materials consumed
Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year 3.25 2.1
Add: Purchases 37.11 110.15
Less: Inventory of materials at the end of the year 2.40 3.25
Cost of materials consumed 37.96 109,01
Employee benefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus 13541 254,78
Contribution to provident and other funds 13.89 20.58
Gratuity and compensated absences 334 4.72
Staff welfare expenses 14.56 4548
Total 167.20 325.56
Finance cost
Interest and finance charges on financial liabilities measured at amortized cost 46.95 14.96
Interest on lease liability 0.08 0.78
Total 47.03 15,74
Depreciation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1.97 1.69
Depreciation of right of use assets 0.92 5.54
Total 2.89 7.23




Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

27

28

Other expenses
Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fuel
Rent
Repairs and maintenance:
- Building
- Plant and machinery
- Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Guest supplies
Laundry expenses
Communication
Printing & Stationery
Recruitment and training
Travel and tours
Legal and professional
Management and brand fees
Payment to statutory auditors:
As Auditor:
- Statutory audit
- Other services
Travel and conveyance
Security charges
Water charges
Sales commission
Sales promotion
Corporate social responsibility
Bank charges
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Income tax expense

a) Amount recognised in profit or loss
Current fax

Current tax for the year

Total

Deferred tax expense
(Increase)/Decrease in deferred tax assets
Total

Income tax (credit) / expense

b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's Tax Rate:

(Loss) / Profit before income tax expense

Tax expense / (income) computed at Indian Tax rate of 22.88% (Previous year: 22.88%)

Net Tax effects of amount which are deductible/disallowed in calculating taxable income - other than
temporary differences

Tax relating to prior years

Income tax expense

<This space is intentionally left blank>

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
9.57 19.08
62.36 118.96
45.31 160.00
3.88 8.01
15.80 24.10
1.35 323
12.58 024
37.09 2427
4.59 20.51
823 23.78
0.84 1.41
1.10 3.62
112 1.31
6.57 44.83
5.50 1.64
236.56 539.25
3.15 3.50
- 1.00
1.84 7.49
8.88 20.48
9.45 26.16
28.45 125.89
0.59 0.27
- 1.68
2.14 4.95
11.12 14.76
518.07 1,200.42
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
4.62 21.61
4.62 21.61
(54.60) 1.07
(54.60) 1.07
(49.98) 22.68
(236.23) 92,97
(54.05) 21.27
(0.56) 1.41
4.62 -
(49.99) 22.68




Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

29 Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost

Financial assets

Trade receivables - - 5.44 - - 33.86
Cash and cash equivalents - . 0.95 - - 2.02
Other financial assets - - 33.72 - - 35.87
Total financial assets - - 40.11 - - 71,75
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 486.14 - - 122,63
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings - - 11.57 - - 332
Trade payables - - 86.53 - - 22841
Other financial liabilities - - 19.10 - - 19.48
Lease liability - - - = - 5.31
Total financial assets - - 603.34 - - 379.15

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are
disclosed in the financial statements. There are no financial instn that are ed at fair value through OCI or PL. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard.

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

As at March 31, 2021 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 13 - - 486.14 486.14
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 17 - . 11.57 11.57
Lease liability 38 - - -
Total financial liabilities - - 497.71 497,71

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

As at March 31, 2020 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 13 - - 122.63 122.63

Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 17 . - 3.32 3.32

Lease liability 38 - - 5.31 5.31

Total financial liabilities - - 131.26 131.26

There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value:
Fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow method, All of the resulting fair value estimates are included under level 3,

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount

Financial liabilities

Borrowings 486.14 486.14 122,63 122,63
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 11.57 11.57 332 3.32
Lease liability - - 5.31 5.31
Total financial liabilities 497.71 497.71 131.26 131.26

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, interest accrued other financial assets and other financial liabilities approximate
their fair values, due to their short-term nature. Hence the carrying amount is considered as the fair value.

<This space is intentionally lefi blank>




<yupiq Mrouoyuaut ifa1 st 2opds sy >

‘ss0]
10 3go1d ur pasTuB09AI STe 9S3Y) ‘OPRUI SIB SALIA0DSI AISUA NP I[qEAL3IAI
3P 1sa031 0} jdwope 0) AANOR JUSWOIONS Ul 83eSUS 0) SANUYUOD
Aupdwo) 9 PO USNLIM USBQ BABY SIIQRAIGISI IO SUEO[ SIOGM -onp
2w00aq Aoy 21ep o w0 sAep 8] uipim JusuIked [eTYIRNUOS 3 SNEW 0

Si1e} J01G3p 3y} usym Fuwoisiaold 10 a1qeALadal B sasuoderes Kuedwod ay] panedmy
A0y Jog papraoxd st jassy Ainy 1oy papraoid st 1355y | 41940001 Jo UONEIAAXS 3[qRUOSEAI OU S 21913 UdYM 10J PapIA0Id Bk $1985Y |-IIpAID ‘s1assE |npiQnog %)

“Tr 10 3]qIF1 33U ST I[NEFSP FO JSLI U I9YM Pu jsH Jrpato a|qiaySau
3550 1IPa1d Paoadxs puow-g | §3SSO] J1pamd pajoadxa swy-ary|suonedigo auy sew o) Aoedes Suons seY Aed-1unoo oy s Sssy|'siasse  Appenb yaig 12
[SEITTT) SI[(BAIIAI ApBIL A1039383 Jo uonduiosaq ENTHEITS) Suged [euTgu

uoi5140d §0] 31paId Paaadxa Jo UONIUB022 10] SisEg

:BuIMO[[0] ST UO Paseq sSO[ NPaId> payoadxs 03 sapuoid Auedwo)) ay |,
$2550) J1p24d Pay>odxa 40f uoisiaoLg (1)

510108} SRUOUCO3-019EU 1110 PUE $33212d0 A111U5 YOIYM Ul JUSWILOIAUS SSIUISNG 37} SULISPISUOD AQ PAUIULIAIEP ST I[NEJSP JO uonrugap SIYJ “anp J[ey A3 Uagm pue se sjuswiked [enjornu0o Sxjew 0) sjiey A11edisIunod ou usym si josse [eIOUBUY © UO J|Nejop v

“waisAs unel 11pa [Rwaul [Bnonp s 1pasd sy sefuurus Apofew
Aupdwo) oY) pue uoneuuojur Sunjoo]-Surpresun) sanioddns PUE D[QELOSEAI JJqE|IEAR SI9PISUOD 1] UOKIUZOI3I |eDIUY JO S)Bp ay3 8 S8 HNEIop Jo YSU oy yita slep Sumodar 41 JE Se 1558 I} UO SULLNDI0 I[P & 30 ysu 2y saredwos Auedwo]) o ysu
1Ip213 UL 350U JUBDLIUFIS © ST 21oy) Jatpiaym §sasse o], ‘pouad Fumodal yoes woEnoay siseq FuI03uo ue uo NSU IPaId Ul 3SBAIOUT JULILIEIS © USOQ S 213U} JIUI2MM PUE J9SSE JO uonnEooa) (el uodn 1neyap jo Aupg qoud aup s1opisuod Auedwo] sy y

pasredun-1paId ‘s30sse [JIqnoq : 70
AU 1pa3d 2(qiBy3ou ‘s1zsse ienb-ydi ¢ 15

'SIOSSE [ElauBUY 30 SSe]D 21 0) 9J102ds s10108) pue sinduj ‘suoRdinsse 1P U0 paseq SJesse [EIURUY JO SSEO Yaes 0 sHune: 11paJd> Juimojjoy oy suBisse Auedwwo) (1, "SOSLIAIOEILYD IUSIAIIP M SIUALUNISUL [BISUBUY JO SSR[S Yoes 10§ Siseq Auedwio)
£ U0 paunopad ST Sune: 1ipald [ewai "weIsAS SUNEI JIPold [BWSIUY UE WIRIUIEUI PUE SSISSE 1B W) Syeredss € JO $)515U00 UOHdUNY 9dUBUY YL, ‘WAISAS FUPEL 11Pald [BUISIUT UO Paseq §Su JIPald soFRUBI puE SISSasst Aupdwio] ayy ‘siasse [eroueuy I9130 10

"p31daooe 218 suonmuSUYSYIeq pajel y3ig Auo ‘SUOnMISUI [BIoUBUY PUE $HUBQ 107 “siseq Auedwo)) © uo pofeuew STYSUI JIpa1)

TudwaSvuvu Y1 11pas) (1)

"$9]qBA13021 uIpuEISING SUIpn|IUT SI3W0ISND 0) saunsodxa Pad se 124 Se ‘SUOLIILSUL [BIOUBUY PUE SYUBQ 3IM S}s0dap PUB 3509 PISILIOUIE T8 PALLIBD SJUS[RAINDS YSBS PUR [SED WOL SISUE YSU HPAL)
HSH3Paa) (V)

ysu Apmby|
PUE JSU JIPa10 s yons seale 3g10ads Funaros saorjod se [[om se Jusursgeuews JSH [[e1940 103 sa[d1oupd sapiaoid preoq 3y "$1030931p Jo pieoq a1 Aq paaoidde sarjod Jspun Jusuniedsp Amnseon [21U33 2 Aq 30 paLues ST wuswedeuew Ysu s, Auedwo) ayL

S[npayds Justukedar paxy ou s1e a1sy) pue Auedwios Suipjoy
S WOy I8 SFUIMOLIOQ SY, ‘SIUI[ JIP3Id PIRIUILIOd JO KH[IqeieAy S1SB2210J MO[J yses Suifjoy SOUI[IqRI] JAYI0 pUe STUIMOLIOR ySL Aypinbry
pouad 31pa1> a1 ySnonp pue uondsous ji "1S00 P3sIIOWE Je PAINSeSW S)asse [eloUeuy
SSIUILIOM 11DALD ISWOISND JO JUILSSISSY Pue o1joyuod JO UORRAYISIIAI] JUSWISSISSE 1Ipa1d pue sisAfeue Jupdy ‘sajqealadal apex ‘sjuajeatnba yseo pue ysen sU Hpai))
[TENTERTTT Y R WINsEIy | W0y SUISIE 2ansodxg WSt

{SH 3IPa10 pue ysu QIpinbi| Ysu Jaxew 0) 3t 350dxs SIFIALOE s Auedwo)) ag],

u HSLI [Bl 4 0€

(pa1Dis as1mi24)0 SSaJUN ‘SYYD] “SY Ui SIUROWD ny)
1207 ‘1€ Yd4BJAl Papud J8aL Y3 10J PUR JE SB S}UIWIJE)S [elduguyy jo 31ed Sunuaoy sajoN
papury (K400) skepijoy Suijrag



<yup}q Ajouoyuazuy iy st so0ds syL>

Sy 1207 “T€ YIIBIA] UO IDUBMO[B S50
- SOLI2A0SY
- Te3A 913 UL SPRUI UOISIAOL]
O] 3TIp S35UeMO[[e 550] UI S3TUEY)
152 4 0207 ‘T€ YIIBJAl UO dUEBMOJ[E SO
- SaLIAA000Y
N TeaK 9U3 UL 3P UOISIAOL]
0] 3Tp SIOULMO][e S50] UT Saguey)
SSp 6107 ‘1 (1dy uo 3duUBMOJ[B SSO'T
SIQBAIRIAL PRI, -U0ISTA0Ld IDUBMO|E SSO[ JO UOLEI[IOU0DIY (3)
159 4 1394 = (ors1A01d 20UBMO[E SSOT) $3SS0] 3IPAID Pajoadxg
%1 %001 %0 3.1 5501 payoadxg
1'8e 1324 98°€E umomwe Sui1res ssoin
&L anp jsed s£ep 08T By 3101\ anp jsed s<ep gy 0pdn) Surdy
0207 “T€ YdHBIA 38 SY
324 324 - (uorsiaoxd oueMO|[e $SOT) $9550] 11pa10 poroadxy
%9% %001 %0 aje1 s50] pajoadxyg
66’6 152 4 1423 Junoure Suifires ssoin
TeIoL up jsed sKep 8T uBy) 0 anp ysed sAep og1 o3dny 3updy

1207 ‘1€ Y 3B sy

Yoeoadde pay1duis JOPUR SIGBAIIIII IPBL) JOf SSO[ J1paJd pARXF (q)

'§1255% [B1OURTY 3531} 10§ PaSfuS00a1 $5O[ JPAID Pajoadxs ou are 1o Apuanbasuo) “sysodap Jof ([IN 10707 Yore) !N $1I[NJap je yumomne JUIALIes $5018 palewns? YL
spsodap Joj sso] 31pasd papdadxy (&)

10202 ‘T€ YMBIA PUE 1707 ‘T€ YOEIN Papud 4824 oy Jog
(‘Pyu0d) yuawaBeuew ysu [epuRUL] f

(paris asimiayo ssaqun *syyo) sy Ut SimowUD ii/)
1207 ‘T€ YDAl P3PUa Je3£ 31j) 10} PUE J© SB SJUSUWINES [eoueuy jo Jied Sunwaoy saj0N
pawry (Ko0Q) sAepiioy Suisag



<yup}q Ajouotuaiut ifa} st 200ds siyL>

“Buipury

10y Awedwios 3uipjoy sy Aq pauoddns A[ng ose st 3] "PoYsIGIIaT AJUSIAI SBM ymm Ausdoid o wog sgues pue sajer Aduednooo bl ssealoul 0} Snp amny w Aiqeigold pue Yaosd 10uBry spadxe Auedwo)) sy ‘spyuEl pue ol Aruednaoo ur 3sBaIOUl
0) anp symsar Sunerado wr Juowaroiduy umoys sey Auedwo)) sy "papoIs A[ing usaq sey AuedwioD) ot JO YUOM-ISU S [70T ‘T€ UDIEN I8 SV 'suswarmbal [ejides si jeeu 0] JopIo ur wnuue 13d 9401 18 Auedwod Suipjoy oy woy smowuoq Auedwo)) ayx

‘Tesrdeo 30 150 a1y} 3onpaI 0} 21mdnns [ejdes jewndo ue UrRIUIRW
PUE ‘SISPJOYa3E)S 190 10] SIGAUG PUR SISP|OYIIRYS 10f SUINJSI dPLAacid O) SNURUOD Ued K31 1ey) os ‘wadouoo Jujod e se onuUOd 0) AYYIqe 113y prendayes .
‘03 axe [eyides Jurdeuews usym $aA1392(qo s Auedmo)) ay
JudwageuBw YSry
judwdBeupw [epde) ¢

FE'ELE = = = P8'ELE P8 ELE SINIIGEI] FAEALIdP-UOY [B)O,
08'Ct = - S 08'CC 087C SIMIIQRT] [BIOUBUY 1RO
[1:4:144 - = = 1¥'87C 1¥'82C sa[qeAed apu1],
€9°CTI = = - £9°CC1 £€9°7C1 sfuimowniog
SIAYLALIIP-UON

0702 ‘1€ YdBIA] JE SY

F€€09 = * = PE°€09 PE€09 SIPIIQEI] FAYEALIID-UOU [BJO ],
L90E = - s L9°0€ L90E SaQIIIqel| [BIURLY 130
£5°98 L = = £5°98 £5798 sa[qeded apei],
198y = * - 198t (481 sSuimoliog
SIAYBALIIP-UBON

1202 ‘I€ YB3k Y

eoL SIBIL § pUE T Udamyag SAEIA T PUB [ UIBMIIG  JBIL U0 UIGPIAL syjuow ¢ ueyy ssAY junowe Surliie)) *SIPLIqEI [BIOUBLL JO SIPLINJBU [ENIDEHUOD)
“JuesIugis Jou st Sununoosip 3o jordws oy s seoue[eq SuifLes sy fenbs spuow 7| ULim 9Np S3ouBje 1s343)Uf SUIPN|OUL 'SMOJJ YSBO PAIUNOSSIPUN [EAIDLNLOD 3} 218 3]qE) o3 U] PasO|9SIp SJUnowe ai |

'SSHINIQRI] [BOUBUY BANEALIZP-UOU [[@ J0J SINLIEW [BAIDLRUOD A1) U0 paseq sBurdnosd Aunjew jueas(a ot sanijiqus| jeraucuy s Auedwoy) ayy asA[eue Mo[aq sa]qe) oYL

SomIqu} puvuY Jo sopinnvy

‘a[npatos Jawdedas paxy Aue ARy 10U s30p yanjam Aueduiod Suiploy 2y woy sFuimouoq ySnong siustwasinbos Furoueuy sn sodeuew osfe Ausdwo)

"SMOJJ 583 Pa133dx3 JO SIseq Yy Uo sjusfeamnba yses pue ysea pue uomisod Aupmbyy s, Auedwo)) sy Jo siseasioy Fujjor SI0NUOW WaUBTRURLY "Saul] 1PaLD pan Japun Anpqepeae Sulmmuew Aq Suipuny ur Au 2y smeumw Anseay sAuedwo)

oYL ‘suonisod jaxreur Jno 35015 01 PUE SNp USYM STONEFIGO HIUK 0} SI[IEY UPOId PARILILIOS 30 Junowre 2yenbape te ySnoy Buipurg Jo A1Ige[IeAR I} PUE SINLINDIS I[QEISNIEUI PUR YSED 1UaILNSs Tunmurew ﬂ__ﬁ_E._,EuEsw_EmE ysu Arpnbiy jusprug

AsU Aipinbyy (g)
(‘P3u0d) JuawaBeuew HSII [BIdUBUL] Of

(pa1pis as1muay10 SSajun ‘Syypj Sy Ut SHUROUD JJ)
20T “I€ Y22BAl Papua J1eaf 3y} 40} PUL B SE SHUIWA}E)S [edULUI Jo Jed Suiusiop sajoN
Py (§0Q) s<epijoy Suyiag



Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

32 Related party transactions
(a) Parent entities
The Company is controlled by following entity:

Name of entity

Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited, Canada
Thomas Cook (India) Limited
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

(b) Transactions with related parties
Transactions with related parties are as follows:

Sale of services
Thomas Cook (India) Limited

Lease rent expenses
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

Brand expenses
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

Miscellaneous income
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

Management fees
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

Interest on borrowings
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

Loans availed
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

Loans repaid
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

(c) Outstanding balances as at year end

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

Trade receivables
Thomas Cook (India) Limited
Travel Corporation (India) Limited

Borrowings
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

Interest accrued but not due
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited

Ownership interest held by ihe Group

Type

March 31, 2021
Ultimate holding company -
Intermediate holding company -
Holding company 98%

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

0.22

43.14

14.34
68.17
22022
4333
1,216.28
(852.77)

As at
March 31, 2021

0.37
0.01

486.14

11.57

<This space is left intentionally blank>

March 31, 2020

98%

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

156.30

51.46

35.65

487.79

14.82

2,010.36

2,066.93

As at
March 31, 2020

122.63




Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

33

34

35

36

37

vi
vii

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:
(a) Luxury tax related demands 196.38 196.38
(b) Income tax related matter 10.83 -

(c) Supreme Court vide their judgement dated -February 28, 2019 clarified that Provident fund deduction is to be made on basic salary and on other salary components
which are universally made available to all employees. The Company, based on external advice, believes that there are interpretative challenges on the application of
the judgement retrospectively. Based on the advice and in the absence of the reliable measurement of the provision for earlier periods. the Company has not recorded a
provision with respect to any period. The Company would update the provision in future based on clarification received from the relevant authorities,

Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited (SHRL) holds 98% equity shares in the Company and the Company is responsible for maintaining the property Ooty Elkhill, pursuant
to the property timeshare agreement with the property timeshare members. However, certain property timeshare weeks are unsold and retained by SHRL. Pursuant to
the necessary approvals obtained by the Company as required under the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is permitted to rent out weeks sold to property timeshare
members and unsold weeks retained by SHRL which are vacant and earn revenue from it. The property timeshare members and SHRL shall have no claim on the
revenue generated by the Company. Further, pursuant to the exchange clause under property timeshare agreement, property timeshare members of the said property are
also eligible to utilize facilities at SHRL’s other resorts,

The Company has identified only one reportable segment. The entire Corpany's business is from resort operations and maintenance services (being leisure hospitality
services) and there are no other reportable segments. Thus, the segment revenue, segment results, total carrying value of segment assets, total carrying amount of
segment liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire segment assets, total amount of charge of depreciation during the year are all as reflected in the financial statements as
at and for the year ended March 31, 2021.

During the current year, the Company had adopted measures to curb the spread of infection in order to protect the health of its employees and ensure business
continuity with minimal disruption (including temporary closure of its resort). The Company had reopened resort since August 2020. However, considering the
significant increase in infection due to the second wave in India, the Company has adopted measures to contro! the spread of the pandemic. The Company has again
temporarily closed the resort in April 2021.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 reflect that the Company has incurred losses of Rs. 186.25 lakhs during the year and has accumulated
losses of Rs. 580.53 lakhs (which have fully eroded the net worth of the Company) as at the balance sheet date.

The Management strongly believes, the lockdown would be lifted, and operations would restart by June 2021. However, the impact of COVID-19 on the economy
continues to be uncertain and the extent to which the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s financial performance including the Company’s
estimates of impairment of assets and future cashflows, is dependent on such future developments, the severity and duration of the pandemic, which cannot be
predicted with certainty. The Company has considered the context of the pandemic in applying the assumptions used 1o determine the future cashflows. The impact
assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to the future economic conditions. Also refer note 1.2.1.

Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under for the year 2019-20, to the extent the Company has received
intimation from the "Suppliers" regarding their status under the Act

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 4.62 0.88
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 1.11 0.07
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed date during the 16.66 8.82
year
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, - -
beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the - -
appointed day during the year
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already made 0.34 0.04
Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues 0.77 0.03

above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure
under section 23 of the MSMED Act

<This space is intentionally left blank>




Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31,2021
(All amounts in Ry, fakhs, unless otherwise stated)

38 Movement in right of use assets and lease liabilities as per Ind AS 116 Leases

As a lessee, the company leases many assets mainly comprising of stafl dation

Right of use assets Buildiog Tolal
Balance at April 1,2019 - =
Transiti dj on adopting IND AS 116 10.60 10.60
Addition to right of use assets . -
Depreciation charge for the year (5.54) (5.54)
Derecognition of right of uses asscts . -
Balance at March 31,2020 e 5.06 5.06
Addition to right of use assets - .
Depreciation charge for the year 0.92) (0.92)
Derecogniion of nght of uses assets (4.14) (4.14)

Balance at March 31, 2021 . :

Lease liabilities Amount
Balance at April 1,2019

Transition adjustment 10.60
Additions .
Deletions -
Finance cost accrued dunng the period 0.78
Discharge of lease liabilities (6.07)
Balance nt March 31,2020 531
Additions .
Deletions (4.38)
Finance cost acerued duning the period 0.08
Discharge of lease liabilities {1.01)

Dalance at March 31, 2021 =

39 Earnings per share March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Loss for the year attnbutable to the equity holders of the Company (186.25) 70.29
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding e - BS0000) - 50,000
Basic and diluted carnings per share (372.50) 140.58

As per our report of even date

Jor BS R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sterling Holidays (Ooty) Limited
Fitm Registration Number: 101248 W/W-100022 (CIN US5102TN1989PLC018344) ( \

/ { 1 | y 1D (Op (o WY N/

Satish Vaidyanathan Tnnesh Shantiugam M Balasubramaniyan
Partner Director Director

Memberslhip No.: 217042 DIN No.: 06646158 DIN No.: 03088801
Place: Chennai Place: Chennai Place: Chennai

Date: May 19,2021 Date: May 19, 2021
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Chartered Accountants

KRM Tower, 1 & 2™ Floors, Telephone: + 91 44 4608 3100
No.1, Harrington Road, Chetpet, Fax: + 91 44 4608 3199
Chennai - 600 031, India

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31. 2021, and the statement of profit and loss
(including other comprehensive income). statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended. and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31. 2021, and loss and other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Awuditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As more fully described in Note 36 to the financial statements, the extent to which the ongoing COVID-19
pandemic will have impact on the Company’s financial performance including the Company’s estimates of
impairment of assets and future cashflows. are dependent on future developments, the severity and duration
of the pandemic. which cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company has considered the context of the
pandemic in applying the assumptions used to determine the future cashflows. The impact assessment of
COVID-19 is a continuing process. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to the
future economic conditions,

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s report but does not include the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Board's report is expected to be made available to us after
the date of this auditor's report.

wenad wio B 5 R & Co LLP
th eifect from October 14, 2013
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so. consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. When we read the Board’s report, if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and
take necessary actions as required under applicable laws and regulations.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(3)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income. changes in cquity and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management and Board of Directors cither
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs. we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and.
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 1o the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings. including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “*Annexure A™ a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account

d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act.

¢) Onthe basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “*Annexure B,

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
Il of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company did not have any pending litigations as at March 31, 2021 on its financial
position in its financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable loss.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection IFund by the Company.

iv. The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified
bank notes during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016 have not been
made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended March
312021

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
paid/ provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs
has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon
by us.

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248 W/W-100022

v

Satish Vaidyanathan

Parter

Membership No: 217042

ICAI UDIN: 21217042AAAABA9432
Place: Chennai

Date: May 19, 2021
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(1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed asscts by which all fixed
assets are verified on a yearly basis. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material
discrepancies were noted on such verification.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no immovable properties held in the name of the Company.

(i) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. The procedures of
physical verification followed by the management are reasonable and adequate in relation to the size
of the Company and the nature of its business. In our opinion, the frequency of verification is
reasonable. The discrepancies noted on verification between physical stock and book records were
not material and have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

(i) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) of the said Order
is not applicable.

(iv) The Company has not granted any loan or made any investments or provided any guarantees or
security to the parties covered under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (iv) of the said Order is not applicable.

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed
thereunder to the extent notified. Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The Central Government of India has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for any of the activities of the Company and accordingly
paragraph 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii) (a)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of an examination of the
records of the Company, amounts deducted/acerued in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund. employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and services
tax, cess and other material statutory dues have not generally been regularly deposited by the
Company with the appropriate authorities. There have been delays in deposit with respect to
provident fund ranging from | to 75 days, employees’ state insurance ranging from | to 97 days,
income tax ranging from 27 to 88 days and goods and services tax ranging from 1 to 34 days. As
informed, the delays in deposit have been primarily due to the pandemic and the dues have been
since paid. As explained to us, the Company did not have any dues on account of sales tax, service
tax, value added tax, duty of customs and duty of excise.

The extent of the arrears of statutory dues outstanding as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable is as follows:

Name of the | Nature of | Amount | Period to which | Due Date ~ [ Date  of]
Statute the Dues (Rs.) the amount Payment
i relates, S oo st aheee s skit= i
The Income | Fringe i Assessment March 31, 2008 | Yet to be
Tax Act. 1961 | benefit tax Years  2008-09 | and March 31, | paid
EPEr and 2009-10 | 2009 respectively |
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(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no dues of duty of customs,
duty of excise, service tax, value added tax, income tax and luxury tax which have not been deposited
with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not
have any outstanding loans or borrowings to any financial institution, bank, government or debenture
holders during the year.

(ix) The Company did not raise any money by initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not
applicable.

(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or any material

fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of
our audit.

(xi) The Company has not paid/ provided for any managerial remuneration during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (ix) of the said Order is not applicable.

(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi company. Accordingly. paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company. the Company has entered into transactions with related parties in
compliance with the provisions of section 188 of the Act where applicable. The details of such related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable
accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of
the Order is not applicable.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi) of the Order is not applicable.

for BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 101248 W/W-100022

Y e
Satish Vaidyanathan

Partner

Membership No: 217042

ICAL UDIN: 21217042AAAABA9432
Place: Chennai

Date: May 19, 2021
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Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Sterling Holiday
Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31. 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

[n our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (the “Guidance Note™).

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors. the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act. 2013 (hereinafier
referred to as “the Act™).

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were
established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide rcasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
penerally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also. projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Jor BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
IFirm Registration Number: 101248 W/W-100022

ollme.

Satish Vaidyanathan

Partner

Membership No: 217042

ICAL UDIN: 21217042AAAABA9432
Place: Chennai

Date: May 19, 2021



Sterling Holiday Resorls (Kodaikanal) Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(All amownts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Assels
Non-current assels
Property, plant and equipment
Right of use assets
Financial assets
Other financial assets
Orther tax assets
Orther non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventorics
Financiol assets
i. Trade receivables
ii, Cash and cash equivalents
iii. Other financizl assets
Olher current assets

Total current asscls
Total assels
Equity and liabilitics
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Other reserves
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
1. Lease liability
Provisions
i. Provision for emplayce benelit ablipations
Total non-current liabilitics
Curreni liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i. Borrowings
ii. Trade payables
Dues to micro and small enterprises
Dues to creditors other than micro and simall enterpnses
iii. Other financial ligbililies
iv. Lease liability
Provisions
1. Provision for employee benefit obligations
ii. Other provisions
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies

The sccompanyiug notes sre an integral part of these linancial statements

As per our report of even date

Jor BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Finn Registration Number: |01248WAY-100022

el

Satish Vaidyanathan
Pariner
Membership No.: 217042

Place: Chennai
Date: May 19, 2021

Note
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March 31, 2021

Asat
March 31, 2020

1983 44.31
15.00
14.09 16.95
7.88 9.89
1447 12.23
76,27 98.38
542 .1
691 3166
1.72 8175
3.58 :
2742 24.13
45.05 7231
ii—— A 132 170,69
5.00 5.00
(1,417.64) (1,208.95)
111,78 11178
(1,300.86) (1,092.17)
680
15.34 17.36
15.34 14.16
122727 947 94
6.03 3.76
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8.9
9.17 10.69
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56.07 47.81
1,406.84 1,238.70
1,422.18 1,262.86
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Sterling Holiday Resorts (Ko lii};l!l:l“ Limited
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Ianmesh Shanmugm

=« lNrector

DIN No.. 06646158

Place: Chennai
Date: May 19, 2021
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M Balasubramanivun
Director
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Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Note March 31,2021 March 31,2020
Income
.14
Revenue from operations 20 po Il':; 59
Other income 2] 3319 1.216;11
Total income 602.59
Expenses 80.96
Cost of materials consumed 2 hoin 31931
Employee benefits expense 23 158.81 ik
Finance costs 2 127.65 IZISS
Depreciation and isation exp 25 6.96 x95l08
Other expenses 26 475.36 -
.86
Totsl cxpenses 817.24 o ;
191,
Laoss before tax al :
Income fax expense 7
Current tax - :
Deferred tax - =3
y 911
Loss for the year (214.65) [0 )
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently 1o profit or loss
R of post empl benefit obligati 5.96 244
Income tax relating to this item )
Other comprebensive income for the year, net of income tax 5.96 244
Total comprehensive income for the year (208.69) [C 3859)
Earnings per share (Face value of Rs. 10 cach) i
Basic and anti-diluted eamings per share (in Rs.) 38 (429.30) (382.26)
Significant accounting policies 13
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date
for BSR& Co. LLP For and on behalf of the 13oard of Directors of
Chartered Accouniants Sterling Holiday Resorts (| lknm\l) Limited
Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022 (CIN U‘)2490TNI98’II‘[C01 2
piiloy °>(\ bz emE N
Satish Vaidyanathan e ninugam M Balasubramaniyan 9/
Partner Durectar Director 3
Membership No.: 217042 DIN No.: 06646158 DIN No.: 03088801
Place: Chennai

Place: Chennai

Date: May 19, 2021 Dale: May 19, 2021



Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodsikanal) Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31,2021
(AN amonnts in Rs. lakhs, unless othervise siated)

I) Equity share capltal

Note Amount
Balance as st Apnil 1, 2019 5.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year o .
Balance as at March 31, 2020 5.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 10 .
Balance a5 al March 31,2021 e — DL

I1) Other equity
Notes  Reserves and surplus Other reserves
Contribution
Retalned earnings from holding Total
company
Balance as at April 1, 2019 (1,020,26) 111.78 (908.48)
Loss for the year & 12 (191.13) . (191.13)
Other comprehensive income 1& 12 244 244
Balance us at March 31,2020 T T  aoses) 11178 (1,097.17)
Loss for the year &1 (214.65) . (214.65)
Other comprehensive income &2 5.96 5.96
Balance a3 ot March 31,2021 b (1,417.64) 111.78 (1,305.56)
Signifi g polic L3
The accompenying noles are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date
Jor BS R & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Boanl ¢f Directors of
Chartered Accountants Sterling Holigay Resorts (Kydaikanal) Limited
Firm Registration Number: 10124BW/W-100022 (LN |‘u_'.|-l;)l'| m-u‘.‘.’l‘i.(':}u; ')
1A
\ T L / )
'\.\
Satish Valdyansthan f \?tann-\h Shanmugan M Balasubramaniyan
Partner - “Wirecton Directar
Membership No.: 217042 DIN No.: 06646158 DIN No.: 03088801
Place: Chennai Place: Chennai

Date: May 19, 2021 Date: May 19, 2021



Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Statement of cash Nows for the year ended March 31, 2021
(AN amaunts in Rs. fakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
Note Murch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Cash Now from operating uctivities
Laoss before Income fax (214.65) (191.13)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 25 6.96 1285
Finance cost 24 127.65 99.66
Lass on termination of lease contracts s (0.76) ;
Operating cash Nlow before working capital changes (80.80) (78.62)
Change in operating assels and liabilities
(Increasey/decrease in trade receivables 7 2475 (22,74)
(Increase)/decrense in inventorics 6 235 (2.76)
(Increase) in other financial assets q (0.92) 118
Increase in other non current assels 9 (224) (7.98)
Increase in olher current assets 9 (3.29) (7.87)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 16 (115.40) 116,29
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities 17 048 (2.13)
Increase in employee benefit obligations 15 242 32
Increase in other current liabilities 19 826 20,07
Cash gencrated (used in) / from operutions (164.19) 18.65
Income tax paid 201 (1.04)
Net cash generated (used in) / from operating activities (162.18) 17.61
Cush Nows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1.18) (6.83)
Net cash used in investing activities (1.18) 16.83)
Cash Nows from financing activities
Proceeds from loan taken from holding Company 1,139.94 1,396.39
Repayment of loan from holding company (B60.61) (1,247 58)
Interest paid (121.50) (160.45)
Payment of lease liability (1.49) (8.92)
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities o 15634 _ (2056)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash und cash equivalents (7.02) 0.22
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the financial year 8 875 R 53
Cash and cash equivalents st end of the year -_......—-__. G _T_?l_ e == RIS
Reconcilintion of cash and cash cquivalents as per the cash Mow statement:
Cosh and cash equivalents comprise of the following
Cash ond cosh equivalents b 172 875
Balance us per statement of cash flows 172 875
Sipnificant accounting policies 13
The accompanying notes are an integral pant of these financial statements
As per our report of even date
Jor BSR& Co, LLP For and on behalf of thg Boand of Direciors
Chartered Accountants Sterling Holiday Resokts (Kotaikanal) Limited
Firm Registration Number; 101248W/AV-100022 ~TUIN }J‘JJ-I')\'I]. NIOSTPACO11215)
.- ./ L 4
» / ; I i
; L/
£ N\,
Satish Valdyanathan _I_l_,;mefll Shammugam M Balasubramaniyan
Membership No.: 217042 \___—""_~""DIN No. 06646158 DIN No.: 03088801
Place: Chennai Place: Chennai

Date: May 19, 2021 Date: May 19, 2021



Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.1.

1.2
1.2.1.

1.2.2

1.2.3.

Reporting entity

Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited (the “Company”) is engaged in providing resort operations
and maintenance services (being leisure hospitality services). Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited (‘Parent
company’) holds 98% of the share capital. The ultimate holding company is Fairfax Financial Holdings
Limited, Canada.

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as
per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act,
2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
May 19, 2021

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
e certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value (Refer Note 28).

e  defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value (Refer Note 15).

As at year ended March 31, 2021 the Company has incurred losses of Rs. 214.71 lakhs and has accumulated
losses of Rs. 1,417.70 lakhs (which have fully eroded the net worth of the Company) as at the balance sheet
date. The Company has considered various internal and external sources of information, up to the date of
approval of the financial statements, in determining the potential impact on the financial position and business
operations of the Company including those arising from of the COVID-19 pandemic. Based on the future
business plans, approved cash flow projections for the next 12 months and letter of financial support provided
by the parent company, the Company believes that it would be able to meet its financial requirements and no
adjustments would be required in respect of the carrying values of assets/liabilities. Accordingly, these
financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
operating decision maker.

The Chairman-Managing Director (CMD) of the Parent company has been identified as the chief operating
decision maker of the Company who assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and
makes strategic decisions. Refer Note 34 for segment information presented.

Current/ Non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products
and services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and
cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current
and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.



Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.2
1.2.4.

1.3.
1.3.1.

1.3.2.

Basis of preparation (contd.)
Foreign currency transaction
a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency"). The financial statements
are presented in Indian rupee (Rs.) which is the Company's functional and presentation currency.

b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Significant accounting policies
Revenue recognition

The Company recognises revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Ind AS 115 establishes a five-step approach to revenue recognition that includes identifying
contracts with customers, identifying performance obligations, determining transaction prices, allocating
transaction prices to performance obligations and recognising revenues when or as the performance
obligations are satisfied.

Income from resort operations and maintenance services (being leisure hospitality services) comprising of
sale of food and beverages, room rentals and other services are recognised when these are sold and when
services are rendered.

Contract balances

(i) Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for services rendered to the customer. If
the Company renders services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

(ii) Contract liabilities
A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Company has received consideration has received consideration, or for which an amount of
consideration is due from the customer. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Company performs under the contract

Income taxes

The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Income tax for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in ‘Other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the tax is recognised in ‘Other comprehensive income’ or directly in equity,
respectively. ;




Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3.
1.3.2.

1.3.3.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Income taxes (contd.)

(a) Current Tax:

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of previous
years. Interest income/ expenses and penalties, if any related to income tax are included in current tax
expense.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. The company offsets the current tax assets as against
the liability for provision for tax.

(b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amount, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at
the time of the transaction.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised. Deferred taxes on items classified under Other comprehensive income (‘OCI') has been
recognised in OCIL.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences are expected to be
received or settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.

Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 Leases with effect from April 1, 2019 and the Company has elected
to measure right-of-use asset for all leases at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately
before the date of initial application. At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company uses the definition of a lease in Ind AS 116.

As a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-
of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site
on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.




Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3.
1.3.3.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Leases (contd.)

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company
by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a
purchase option. In that case the right of use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying
asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right of use
asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the
lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external
financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

— fixed payments, including in substance fixed payments;

~ variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the
Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Company
changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a
revised in substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right of use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right of use asset has
been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right of use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property,
plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings’ in the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value
assets and short-term leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.




Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3.
1.34.

1.3.5.

1.3.6.

1.3.7.

1.3.8.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Impairment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the
cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment / cancellation.

Inventories

Inventories comprising of provisions, perishables, beverages and operating supplies are stated at lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in-first out (FIFO) method. The cost comprises
of purchase price, non-refundable taxes and delivery handling cost incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Inventories are written down for slow moving / non-moving items, wherever necessary.

Investments and other financial assets
a) Classification:
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

a. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

b. those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this
will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.




Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3.
1.3.8.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Investments and other financial assets (contd.)
b) Measurement:

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in profit or loss.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows.

-Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

-Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

-Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the
asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the
Company classifies its debt instruments:

i. Amortised cost:
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

ii. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except
for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit and loss.

When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these
financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

iii. Fair value through profit or loss:
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or
loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the
statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income.
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1.3.
1.3.8.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Investments and other financial assets (contd.)
Equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments other than investment in subsidiaries and
associates, at fair value. Where the Company's management has elected to present fair value gains and losses
on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value
gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other
income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other
gain/(losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on
equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 29 details how the Company determines whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt
securities at FVOCI are credit impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating
expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and
qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking information.

d) De-recognition of financial assets:

A financial asset is derecognised only when

a. the Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

b. retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where
the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained control
of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is continued to be
recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.
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1.3.
1.3.9.

1.3.10.

1.3.11.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a
separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Based on technical evaluation carried out, depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided, on a
pro-rata basis, on Straight Line Method (SLM) over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which equates to
the useful lives prescribed under Schedule IT to the Companies Act, 2013, as follows:

Asset class Useful life (in years)
Building 60
Plant and machinery 15
Furniture and fixtures — general 10
Fumiture and fixtures — others 8
Office equipment 5
Computer equipment — Servers & network 6
Computer equipment — Desktop, laptop and end-user items 3
Electrical installations 10
Vehicles 8

Assets constructed on leasehold land/leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of lease
or its estimated useful life, whichever is lower.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount,
These are included in profit or loss within other gains/ (losses).

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent unsecured liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the
end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless
payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transterred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as other gains/(losses).
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1.3.
1.3.11.

1.3.12.

1.3.13.

1.3.14

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Borrowings (contd.)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material
provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or before the end of the reporting period with the effect that
the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting date, the entity does not classify the liability as
current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for
issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.,

Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at
the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. A provision is recognized if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations is more probable than not.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure require to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Interest income

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate,
the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected
credit losses.

Employee benefits

a) Defined contribution plan
Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined contribution plan as the
Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a monthly basis.

b) Defined benefit plan
The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump
sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment, of
an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. The Company’s
liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) by an independent actuary at
the end of each year. Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income.

¢) Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12 months
from the end of the year are treated as short-term employee benefits. The obligation towards the same is
measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount expected
to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12 months
from the end of the year are treated as other long-term employee benefits. The Company’s liability is
actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) by an independent actuary at the end of
cach year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in which
they arise.
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1.3.

1.3.15.

1.3.16.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)

Earnings per share

a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

e the profit attributable to owners of the Company

* by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted
for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury shares (Note
38).

b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share to
take into account:

» theafter-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
equity shares, and

o the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off and presented in lakhs
with decimals as per the requirement of Schedule 111, unless otherwise stated.

Critical estimates and judgements:

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised prospectively.

The areas involving critical estimate or judgement are:

Note 15 - The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making assumptions that may differ
from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its Jong-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed
at each reporting date.

Note 36 and 1.2.1 — Going concern

Note 37 - Leases
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Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current Non current Current Non current
4  Other financial assets
Security deposits - 14.09 - 16.95
Unbilled revenue 3.58 - - -
Total 3.58 14.09 - 16.95
As at As at

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

5  Other tax assels
Taxes receivable 7.88 9.89
Total 7.8 9.89

6 Inventories

Food and beverages 2.05 2.61
Operating supplies 3.37 5.16
Total 5.42 7.17

Due to outbreak of COVID-19, Management has performed impairment assessment of all inventories and ascertained that there are no items as at March 31, 2021 with
shorter shelf-life which need to be written off.

7 Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good 6.91 31.66
Total 6.91 31.66

Of the above, trade receivables from related parties are as below:

Total trade receivables from related parties (Refer Note 31) 0.13 -
Loss allowance - -
Net trade receivables 0.13 -

The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 29.

8  Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

- in current accounts 0.17 7.26
Cash on hand 1.55 1.49
Total 1.72 8.75

9 Other assets

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current Non Current Current Non Current
Prepaid expenses - 14.47 - 12.23
Employee advances - - 1.00 -
Advances to suppliers 0.78 . 437 -
Balances with statutory authorities 26.64 - 18.76 -
Total 27.42 14.47 24.13 12.23

<This space is intentionally left blank>




Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

10 Equity share capital

Authorised equity share capital

Authorised March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
0.5 lakhs (March 31, 2020: 0.5 lakhs) equity shares of Rs.10 each 5.00 5.00
Issued, subscribed and paid-up
0.5 lakhs (March 31, 2020: 0.5 lakhs) equity shares of Rs,10 each 5.00 5.00
As at March 31, 2021 5.00 5.00
Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Number Amount Number Amount
in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs
Equity shares
At the commencement of the year 0.50 5.00 0.50 5.00
Shares issued during the year - - -
At the end of the year 0.50 5.00 0.50 5.00

All issued shares are fully paid up.

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the company’s residual assets on
winding up. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. The voting rights of an equity shareholder are in proportion to
his/its share of the paid-up equity share capital of the Company. On winding up of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual

assets of the Company, in proportion to the number of equity shares held.

Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company (j.e., parent of the Group) and/or their subsidiaries/associates

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Number Amount Number Amount

in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs in lakhs
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each held by the Holding Company 049 4.90 0.49 4.90
Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Number % of total Number % of total shares

in lakhs shares in class in lakhs in class
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each held by
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited (Holding Company) 0.49 98% 0.49 98%

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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1

12

13

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Reserves and surplus

Retained eamings (1,417.64) (1,208.95)
Total (1,417.64) (1,208.95)

Movement in reserves and surplus balances is as follows :

a) Retained earnings

Opening balance (1,208.95) (1,020.26)
Loss for the year (214.65) (191.13)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation 5.96 2.44
- Income tax relating to this item - -
Closing balance (1,417.64) (1,208.95)

Other reserves

Contribution from holding company

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening balance 111.78 111.78
Additions during the year - -
Closing balance 111.78 111.78

The loan received from holding company has been measured at fair value by discounting the expected future cashflows at a discount rate based on the risk and other
factors applicable to the Company's cashflows. The difference between the carrying value and the fair value has been considered as capital contribution by the holding
company considering the substance of the transaction.

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current borrowings
Unsecured loan from holding company 1,227.27 947.94
Total 1.227.27 947.94

Unsecured loan from holding company

Unsecured loan amounting to Rs. 1,227.27 lakhs outstanding as on March 31, 2021 (March 31, 2020: Rs. 947.94 lakhs) from Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited (holding
company) carrics an interest rate of 10% p.a. and is repayable on demand.

Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current borrowings 1,227.27 947.94
Net debt 1,227.27 947.94
Particulars Amount
Balance as at April 1, 2019 799.13
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 1,396.39
Repayment of borrowings (1,247.58)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 947.94
Proceeds from loans and borrowings 1,139.94
Repayment of borrowings (860.61)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,227.27

<This space is left intentionally blank>




Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

14 Deferred tax assets and liabilities
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation - 0.82
Total deferred tax liabilities - 0.82
Deferred tax assets
Unabsorbed depreciation allowance and business loss carried forward 178.47 175.37
Provision for employee benefits 9.89 11.46
Depreciation 0.41 -
Set-off of deferred tax assets to the extent of deferred tax liabilities - (0.82)
Net deferred tax asset/ liability as per the balance sheet = -
Unrecognised deferred tax assets 188.77 186.01
Movement in deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation
At April 1,2019 1.41
Charged/(credited):
- to profit or loss (0.59)
- to other comprehensive income =
At March 31, 2020 0.82
Charged/(credited):
- to profit or loss (0.82)
- to other comprehensive income =
At March 31, 2021 -
Movement in deferred tax assets
Depreciation Unabsorbed Provision for employee Total
depreciation allowance benefits
and business loss
AtApril 1, 2019 - 150.27 9.19 159.46
Movement during the year - 25.10 1.45 26.55
At March 31, 2020 - 175.37 10.64 186.01
Movement during the year 0.41 3.10 (0.75) 2.76
At March 31,2021 0.41 178.47 9.89 188.77

In the absence of reasonable certainty that the Company will be able to used the deferred tax asset in the future, the deferred tax assets have not been recognised.

<This space is left intentionally blank>
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15 Provision for employee benefit obligations

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current  Non-current Total Current  Non-current Total
Compensated absences 1.43 241 3.84 1.48 3.41 4.89
Gratuity 7.74 12.93 20.67 9.21 13.95 23.16
Total 9.17 15.34 24,51 10.69 17.36 28.05

(i) Compensated absences
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Current compensated absences expected to be settled within the next 12 months 1.43 1.48

(i) Post employment obligations

a) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity.
The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of
years of service.

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Opening present value of obligation 23.16 22.61
Current service cost 2.56 3.03
Past service cost - -
Interest expense 122 1.49
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 3.78 4.52
Remeasurements
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions - (0.06)
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 0.45 (0.33)
Experience (gains)/losses (6.41) (2.05)
Changes in asset ceiling excluding amounts included in interest expense - -
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income (5.96) 2.449)
Benefit payments (0.31) (1.53)
Closing present value of obligation 20.67 23,16

The net liability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:
Unfunded plans 20.67 2316

(ili) Principal actuarial used in valuation of gratuity

Discount rate 6.39% 6.15%
First year- 0%

0,
Salary growth rate 5% thercafier-4%
Attrition rate 30% 30%

Estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in
employment market.

(iv) Sensitivity analysis
The below table summarises the impact of movement in key assumptions on the present value obligation as at the balance sheet date:

a) Gratuity March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount rate:
+ 100 basis points (0.46) (0.47)
- 100 basis points 0.54 0.58
Salary escalation rate:
+ 100 basis points 0.58 0.60
- 100 basis points (0.52) (0.55)

b) Compensated absence
Discount rate:

+ 100 basis points (0.10) (0.12)

- 100 basis points 0.10 0.13
Salary escalation rate:

+ 100 basis points 0.12 0.15

- 100 basis points (0.11) (0.15)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and changes in some of the
assumption may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to the significant actuarial assumptions the same method (present value of defined
benefit obligation calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied when calculating the defined benefit liability in the balance
sheet.

The methods and types of assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period

(v) Defined contribution plans :
The Company has also certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of gross salary as per regula
contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further,
nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is Rs.10.44 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs.17.46 lakhs)



Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

16

17

18

19

Trade payables

Dues to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 35)
Dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises
Total

The Company's exposure to liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 29,

Other financial liabilities

Current

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Security deposits

Others

Total

Other provislons
Provision for fringe benefit tax
Total

Other current liabilities

Salaries, wages, bonus and other employee payables
Contract liability - Advance received from customer
Statutory dues payable

Total

<This space is intentionally left blank>

As at As at

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
6.03 3.76
37.69 155.36
43.72 159.12
33,01 27.10
3538 3591
1.11 0.10
69.50 63.11
1.11 1.11
L11 1.11
13.10 2191
34.09 2047
8.88 543
56,07 47.81
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Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

20
@

(b)

21

22

23

24

25

Revenue from operations
Disaggregation of revenue:

On the basis of nature of goods or services:
Sale of products

Food and beverages

Sale of services

- Room rentals
- Others

Other operating revenues
Service charges

Total

On the basis of timing of transfer of goods or services

At a point in time
Over a period of time

Movement in contract liabilities as per Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contracts with customers

Opening balance

Additions during the year (net)
Income recognized during the year
Cleosing balance

Contract liabilities pertain to advances received from customers which will be recognized as revenue when the service is rendered.

Other income

Management services income
Scrap sales

Interest Income

Lease income termination
Total

Cost of materials consumed

Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory of materials at the end of the year
Cost of materials consumed

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity and compensated absences

Staff welfare expenses

Total

Finance cost

Interest on financial liabilities not measured at fair value through profit and loss

Interest on lease liability
Total

Depreciation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right of use assets
Total

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
138.80 270.49

394.19 752.93

28.42 121.79

7.99 18.93

569.40 1,164.14

175.21 41121

394.19 752.93

569.40 1,164.14
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
2047 6.19

34.09 2047
(20.47) (6.19)

34.09 20.47

31.91 5191

0.20 0.68

0.32 -
0.76 -

33.19 52.59

2.61 1.01

47.90 82.56

2.05 2.61

48.46 80.96

12991 254.88

12.96 22.16

2.93 5.32

13.01 36.95

158.81 319.31

127.41 97.80

0.24 1.86

127.65 99.66

5.67 5.08

1.29 7.77

6.96 12.85




Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
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26

27

Other expenses
Consumption of stores and spares
Power and fuel

Rent

Repairs and maintenance:

- Building

- Plant and machinery

- Others

Insurance

Rates and taxes

Guest supplies

Laundry expenses
Communication

Recruitment and training
Travel and tours

Legal and professional
Management fees

Payment to statutory auditors:
As Auditor:

- Statutory audit
Travel and conveyance
Security charges
Sales commission
Sales promotion
Bank charges
Printing and stationery
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Income tax expense
a) Amount recognised in profit or loss

Current tax for the year
Deferred tax expense for the year

Income tax expense

b) Reconciliation of tax exj and the ac ing profit multiplied by India's Tax Rate:
Loss before income tax expense
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 22.88% (Previous year: 22.88%)

Net tax effects of temporary differences which are (deductible)/disallowed in calculating taxable income

Tax impact of unrecognised tax losses
Income tax expense

¢) Tax losses

Amount of deductible temporary differences on which no deferred tax assets has been recognised
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised

Potential tax benefit at 22.88%

Tax losses on account of unrecognised deferred tax assets
Date of expiry to carry forward
31-Mar-30

31-Mar-29

31-Mar-28

31-Mar-27

31-Mar-26

31-Mar-24

31-Mar-23

31-Mar-22

Indefinite period to carry forward
Total

<This space is intentionally left blank>

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

8.99 29.49

64.92 97.22

48.66 89.96

5.88 15.40

10.89 25.87

1.63 8.90

6.18 0.93

11.58 26.55

ki) | 21.21

12.04 20.78

1.00 1.39

0.04 1.53

5.72 32.82

6.48 6.89

234.59 390.43

3.15 3.50

3.50 12.05

11.00 19.11

20.81 67.54

1.17 0.99

278 490

1.06 3.05

9.58 14.57

475.36 895.08
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(214.65) (191.13)
(49.11) (43.73)

(1.89) 5.93

51.02 37.80

0.01 -

45.00 3826

780.03 630.37

188.77 152.98
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

216.31 =

169.71 178.42

135.64 135.64

9.56 9.56

94.00 94.00

14.84 14.84

103.53 103.53

- 65.27

36.44 29.12

780.03 630.37




Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
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28  Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
FVTPL FYOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost

Financial assets

Trade receivables - . 6.91 - - 31.66
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1.72 - - 8.75
Loans - - - - - 1.00
Other financial assets - - 17.67 - - 16.95
Total financial assets - - 26.30 - - 58.36
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 1,227.27 . - 947.94
Trade payables - - 43.72 - - 159.12
Other financial liabilities - - 69.50 . - 63.11
Lease liability - - - - - 15.72
Total financial assets - - 1,340.49 = - 1,185.89

(i) Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are
disclosed in the financial statements. There are no financial instruments that are measured at fair value through OCI or PL. To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs
used in determining fair value, the company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanation of each level

follows undemeath the table.

Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

As at March 31, 2021 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 13 - - 1,227.27 1,227.27
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 17 - - 33.01 33.01
Lease liability 37 - - - -
Total financial liabilities - - 1,260.28 1,260.28
Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed
At March 31, 2020 Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 13 947.94 947.94
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 17 - 27.10 27.10
Lease liability 37 - - 15.72 15.72
Total financial liabilities - - 990.76 990.76
There are no transfers between levels 1 and 2 during the year.
(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value:
Fair value of the financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow method. All of (he resulting fair value estimates are included under level 3.
(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
amount amount

Financial Liabilifies
Borrowings 1,227.27 1,227.27 947.94 947.94
Interest accrued and not due on borrowings 33.01 33.01 27.10 27.10
Lease liability - - 15.72 15.72
Total financial liabilities 1,260.28 1,260.28 990,76 990.76

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings, interest accrued other financial assets and other financial liabilities approximate

their fair values, due to their short-terin nature. Hence the carrying amount is considered as the fair value.

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

31 Related party transactions
(a) Parent entities
The Company is controlled by following entity:
Ownership intercst held by the Group

Name of entity Type

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited, Canada Ultimate holding company - -
Thomas Cook (India) Limited Intermediate holding company - -
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited Parent company 98% 98%

(b) Transactions with related parties
Transactions with related parties are as follows:
For the year

For the year ended
ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Sale of services
Thomas Cook (India) Limited 0.13 -

Lease rent expenses
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 46.57 89.12

Brand expenses
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 16.79 3494

Miscellaneous income

Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 31.91 51.91
Management fees
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 217.80 355.49

Interest on borrowings
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 127.41 97.80

Loans availed

Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 1,139.94 1,396.39
Loans repaid

Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 860.61 1,247.58
(c) Outstanding balances as at year end As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period:

Trade receivables

Thomas Cook (India) Limited 0.13 -
Borrowings

Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 1,227.27 94794

Interest accrued but not due
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 33.01 27.10

<This space is left intentionally blank>




Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited
Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

32

33

34

35

vi
vii

36

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:

Supreme Court vide their judgement dated February 28, 2019 clarified that Provident fund deduction is to be made on basic salary and on other salary components which
are universally made available to all employees. The Company, based on extemal advice, believes that there are interpretative challenges on the application of the
judgement retrospectively. Based on the advice and in the absence of the reliable measurement of the provision for earlier periods, the Company has not recorded a
provision with respect to any period. The Company would update the provision in future based on clarification received from the relevant authorities.

Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited (SHRL) holds 98% equity shares in the Company and the Company is responsible for maintaining the property Kodai By the Lake,
pursuant to the property timeshare agreement with the property timeshare members. However, certain property timeshare weeks are unsold and retained by SHRL.
Pursuant to the necessary approvals obtained by the Company as required under The Companies Act, 2013, the Company is permitted to rent out weeks sold to property
timeshare members and unsold weeks retained by SHRL which are vacant and eam revenue from it. The property timeshare members and SHRL shall have no claim on
the revenue generated by the Company. Further, pursuant to the exchange clause under property timeshare agr t, property timeshare members of the said property
are also eligible to utilize facilities at SHRL’s other resorts.

The Company has identified only one reportable segment. The entire Company's business is from resort operations and maintenance services (being leisure hospitality
services) and there are no other reportable segments. Thus, the segment r , segment results, total carrying value of segment assets, total carrying amount of segment
liabilities, total cost incurred to acquire segment assets, total amount of charge of depreciation during the year are all as reflected in the financial statements as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2021.

Disclosure under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are provided as under for the year 2020-21, to the extent the Company has received
intimation from the "Suppliers" regarding their status under the Act

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end 6.03 3.76
Interest due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end - 0.05
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed date during the year 13.83 0.47
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond - -
the appointed day during the year
Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond the - -
appointed day during the year
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act, for payments already made 1.11 0.01
Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues - 0.04

above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the MSMED Act

During the current year, the Company had adopted measures to curb the spread of infection in order 1o protect the health of its employees and ensure business continuity
with minimal disruption (including temporary closure of its resort). The Company had reopened resort from August 2020. However, considering the significant increase in
infection due to the second wave in India, the Company has adopted measures to control the spread of the pandemic. The Company has again temporarily closed the resort
in April 2021.

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021 reflect that the Company has incurred losses of Rs. 214.7] lakhs during the year and has accumulated losses
of Rs. 1,417.70 lakhs (which have fully eroded the net worlh of the Company) as at the balance sheet date.

The Management strongly believes, the lockdown would be lifted, and operations would restart by June 2021, However, the impact of COVID-19 on the economy
continues to be uncertain and the extent to which the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s financial performance including the Company’s estimates
of impairment of assets and future cashflows, is dependent on such future developments, the severity and duration of the pandemic, which cannot be predicted with
certainty. The Company has considered the context of the pandemic in applying the assumptions used to determine the future cashflows. The impact assessment of
COVID-19 is a continuing process. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to the future economic conditions. Also refer note 1.2.1,

<This space is intentionally left blank>



Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodaikanal) Limited

Notes forming part of financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Al amounts in 5. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

37 Movement in right of use assets and leasce liabilities as per Ind AS 116 Leases

38

As a lessee, the company leases assets mainly comprising of stafl accomodation,

Right of use assets
Balance at April 1,2019

Transition adjustment on adopting Ind AS 116

Addition to right of use assets
Depreciation charge for the year
Derccognition of right of uses assels
Balance at March 31, 2020
Addition to right of use assets
Depreciation charge for the year
Derecognition of right of uscs assets
Balance at March 31, 2021

Lease labilities

Balance at April 1, 2019

Transition adjusbnent

Additions

Deletions

Finance cost accrued during the period
Discharge of lease liahilities

Balance at March 31, 2020
Additions

Deletions

Finance cost accrued during the period
Discharge of lease liabilities

Balance at March 31, 2021

Current

Mon-current

Earnings per share

Loss for the year attributable to the equity holders of the Company
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

Basic and diluted earnings per share

As per our report of even date

Jor BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

p——

Satish Vaidyanathan
FPartner
Membership No.: 217042

Flace: Chennai
Date: May 19, 2021

Building

2277

(7.77)

Total

2277

(7.77)

15.00

15.00

(1.29)
(13.71)

(1.29)
(13.71)

March 31,2021
(214.65)

For and on behalf of the Board n:!.' Directors of
Sterling Holiday Resorts (Kodyikanal) Limited

(CIN 1."Jl-:'-‘tl']'NI'J{!'H'l.t'm-l?.lﬁ{

\ N
llllll{\:ﬁ!! Shanmugam
Dhrceton

DIN No.: 06646158

Place: Chennai
Date: May 19, 2021

M Balasubramaniyan
Lhirector
DIN No.: D30888(H

Amuount

22.78

1.86
(8.92)
1572

(14.48)
0.24

March 31, 2020
(191.13)
50,000

(38226)



Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and as stated)

Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Capital work in progress
Other intangible assets
Right of use assets
Financial assets

Other financial assets
Other tax assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Other reserves
Total equity
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liability
Other financial liabilities
Provision for employee benefit obligations
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Total non-current liabilities

Current labilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liability
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Other financial liabilities
Provisions
Provision for employee benefit obligations
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Total liabllities

Total equity and liabilities

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
As per our report of even date

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

Satish Validyanathan
Partner
Membership No.: 217042

Place: Chennai
Date: October 27, 2021

Asat As at
Note March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

2 4,753.14 4,081.63
3 38.74 6.72
4 - 0.45
38 178.56 247.70
5 9.04 12.66
6 17.45 22,93
10 256.94 273.12
5,253.87 4,645.21
7 1.70 1.00
8 1.29 19.43
9 7.25 16.76
10 17.23 8.53
27.47 45.72
5,281.34 4,690.93
11 147.58 147.58
12 (68.58) 647.09
13 1,338.29 673.01
1,417.29 1,467.69
14 677.23 635.26
38 9.20 30.67
16 0.15 0.15
18 83.49 70.27
19 384.46 248.24
1,154.53 984.59
14 1,702.99 1,365.49
38 1.56 9.82

15 - =
15 159.26 196.93
16 786.25 598.68
18 11.65 13.68
17 47.81 54.05
2,709.52 2,238.65
3,864.05 3,223.24
51281.34 4,690.93

13

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
(CIN: U55100MH2005PTC150901)

DIN No.: 00174550

Place: Chennai
Date: October 27, 2021

Jalie

Krishna Kumar L
Director
DIN No.: 00420790



Nature Trails Resoris Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and as stated)

Income

Revenue from operations
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortisation expense
Other expenses

Total expenses

Loss before tax

Income tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations
Revaluation gain
Income tax relating to this item

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax

Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year

Earnings per share (Face value of Rs. 10 each)
Basic and anti-diluted earnings per share (in Rs.)

Significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

Jor BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101248W/W-100022

aﬂ&
Satish Vaidyanathan

Partner
Membership No.: 217042

Place: Chennai
Date: October 27, 2021

Year ended Year ended
Note March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
20 182.14 877.94
21 21.90 0.75
204.04 878.69
22 35.77 153.33
23 221.70 384.06
24 275.33 246.84
25 221.12 270.18
26 206.11 449.52
960.03 1,503.93
(755.99) (625.24)
27
(39.08) (32.83)
(716.91) (592.41)
1.24 24.13
840.00 -
(174.72) 7.40
666.52 31.53
0.39) (560.88)
32 (485.78) (401.42)
1.3

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
(CIN: U55100MH2005PTC150901)

Ra nathan rishna Kumar L
Director irector
DIN No.: 00174550 IN No.: 00420790

Place: Chennai
Date: October 27, 2021



Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Statement of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and as stated)

Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation
Finance costs

Provision for bad and doubtful debts

‘Working capital adjustments:

(Increase)/ decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories
(Increase)/ decrease in other financial assets
Decrease in other assets

(Decrease)/ increase in trade payables
Increase in employee benefit obligations
Decrease in other financial liabilities
Decrease in other liabilities

Cash generated from (used in) operations
Income taxes paid

Net cash (used in) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid

Repayment of borrowings

Proceeds from borrowings

Interest on lease liability

Payment of lease liability

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per the above comprises of the following;

Cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 9)
Balances as per statement of cash flows

Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date

for BS R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number; 101248W/W-100022

/

Satish Vatdyanathan
Partner
Membership Number: 217042

Place: Chennai
Date: October 27, 2021

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(755.99) (625.29)
221.12 270.18
27533 246.84
0.54 33.69
17.60 (3.88)
0.70) 147
3.62 0.42
748 372
(37.67) 44.26
11.19 13.13
24 81 (1.72)
(6.24) (54.67)
(238.91) (71.80)
(4.89) (6.18)
(243.80) (77.98)
(14.61) (68.55)
(14.61) (68.55)
(108.07) (99.88)
(211.24) (134.13)
574.52 402.81
(2.55) “4.07)
(3.76) (5.62)
248.90 159.11
(9.51) 12.58
16.76 4.18
7.25 16.76
Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
7.25 16.76
7.25 16.76

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
(CIN: U55100MH2005PTC150901)

Ra n < hna Kumar L
Direttor rector

DIN No.: 00174550 DIN No.: 00420790

Place: Chennai
Date: October 27, 2021
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Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.1.

1.2
1.2.1.

1.2.2.

Reporting entity

Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited (the “Company”) is engaged in the business of resorts,
campsites and activity camps. The Company is a 100% subsidiary of Sterling Holiday Resorts
Limited (‘Holding Company’). Thomas Cook India Limited is the intermediate holding Company
and the ultimate holding Company is Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited, Canada.

Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133
of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
October 27, 2021.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:
e certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value (Refer Note 28)

e defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value; and (Refer Note 18)

e freehold land measured at fair value (Refer Note 37)

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has incurred losses of
Rs. 716.91 lakhs and has accumulated losses of approximately Rs. 1,444.87 lakhs (which have
significantly eroded the net worth of the Company) as at the balance sheet date. The Company has
considered various internal and external sources of information, up to the date of approval of the
financial statements, in determining the potential impact on the financial position and business
operations of the Company including those arising from the COVID-19 pandemic including the second
wave in April 2021.

Based on the future business plans, approved cash flow projections for the next 12 months, availability
of assets (land and buildings) for securitization/monetization for additional funds and letter of financial
support provided by the Holding Company, the Company believes that it would be able to meet its
financial requirements and no adjustments would be required in respect of the carrying values of
assets/liabilities. Accordingly, these financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Chief operating decision maker.

The Chairman-Managing Director (CMD) of the holding company has been identified as the chief
operating decision maker of Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited who assesses the financial
performance and position of the Company, and makes strategic decisions. Refer Note 30 for
segment information presented.



Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.2.
1.2.3.

1.24.
a)

b)

1.3

1.3.1.

1.3.2.

Basis of preparation(contd.)

Current / Non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the
nature of products and services and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve
months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Foreign currency transaction

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of
primary economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency'). The
financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (Rs.) which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss.

Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition

Under Ind AS 115, an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The standard establishes a five-step approach to
revenue recognition that includes identifying contracts with customers, identifying performance
obligations, determining transaction prices, allocating transaction prices to performance
obligations and recognizing revenues when or as the performance obligations are satisfied.

Income from resorts comprising of sale of food and beverages, room rentals and other services are
recognized when these are sold and as services are rendered.

Income taxes

The income tax expense or benefit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable
income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred
tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Income tax for the period comprises of current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in ‘Other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the tax is recognised in ‘Other
comprehensive income’ or directly in equity, respectively.



Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

L3
1.3.2.

1.3.3.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Income taxes (contd.)

(a) Current Tax:

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date, and any adjustments to tax payable in respect of
previous years. Interest income/ expenses and penalties, if any related to income tax are included in
current tax expense.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. The company offsets the current tax assets
as against the liability for provision for tax.

(b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised for deductible and taxable temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amount, except when the deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Deferred
taxes on items classified under Other comprehensive income ('OCI') has been recognised in OCL

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using substantively
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the temporary differences
are expected to be received or settled. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Leases

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 Leases with effect from April 1, 2019 and the Company has
elected to measure right-of-use asset for all leases at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by
the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the balance
sheet immediately before the date of initial application. At inception of a contract, the Company
assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange of
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset,
the Company uses the definition of a lease in Ind AS 116.



Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3 Significant accounting policies (contd.)
1.3.3 Leases (contd.)

As a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying
asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Company will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right of use asset will be depreciated over
the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. In addition, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the
present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s
incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount
rate.

The Company determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various
external financing sources and makes certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of
the asset leased.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:

— fixed payments, including in substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

— amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

— the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease
payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option or if there is a revised in substance fixed lease payment.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right of use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right of
use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right of use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in
‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings’ in the statement of
financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low value
assets and short-term leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.



Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3 Significant accounting policies (contd.)

1.3.4.

1.3.5.

1.3.6.

Impairment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Inventories

Inventories comprising of provisions, perishables, beverages and operating supplies are stated at lower
of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the first-in-first out (FIFO) method. The cost
comprise of purchase price, non-refundable taxes and delivery handling cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. Inventorics are written down for slow moving / non-moving items, wherever
necessary.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Interest income from other financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive payment has
been established, provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument
and of allocating interest over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts/payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.



Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

1.3.
1.3.6

IL

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

A financial asset is any asset that is:
(a) cash;
(b) an equity instrument of another entity;
(c) a contractual right:
- toreceive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
- to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially favorable to the Company.
@ a contract that will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments and is:
- anon-derivative for which the Company is or may be obliged to receive a variable number
of the entity’s own equity instruments; or
- aderivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets:
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

a. Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income,

or through profit or loss), and

b. Those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be
recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in debt instruments, this will
depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments,
this will depend on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.
The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Measurement of financial asset:

Debt instruments:

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into
which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

i. Amortised cost:
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging relationship
is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.
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1.3.
1.3.6

III.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Financial instruments (continued)

ii. Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI):

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and
foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset
is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/ (losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.

iii. Fair value through profit or loss:
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the period in which
it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments other than investment in subsidiaries and
associates, at fair value. Where the Company's management has elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of
fair value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit
or loss as other income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other
gain/(losses) in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses)
on equity investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 37 details how the Company
determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. In all cases, the maximum period considered when
estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which the Company is
exposed to credit risk.
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1.3.
1.3.6

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Financial instruments (continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

De-recognition of financial assets:
A financial asset is derecognised only when
i. The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
ii. retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, In such cases, the financial asset
is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised,

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the Company has not retained
control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is any liability that is:
(a) a contractual obligation :
- to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
- to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavorable to the Company; or
(b) a contract that will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments and is:
- anon-derivative for which the Company is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of
the Company’s own equity instruments; or
- aderivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments. For this
purpose, rights, options or warrants to acquire a fixed number of the entity’s own equity
instruments for a fixed amount of any currency are equity instruments if the Company offers
the rights, options or warrants pro rata to all of its existing owners of the same class of its own
non-derivative equity instruments. Apart from the aforesaid, the equity conversion option
embedded in a convertible bond denominated in foreign currency to acquire a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments is an equity instrument if the exercise price is fixed in
any currency.
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1.3.
1.3.6

IL

1.3.7.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Financial instruments (continued)

Measurement of financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities
that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method.
Interest expense that is not capitalized as part of costs of an asset is included under ‘Finance costs’.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. An exchange with a lender of debt instruments with substantially
different terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for
as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid and payable is recognized in statement of profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement

The Company adopts the cost measurement approach for property, plant and equipment other than
freehold and leasehold land.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

The Company follows revaluation model for measurement of frechold and leasehold land. Freehold
and leasehold land will be recognised at fair value based on periodic, at least triennial, valuations done
by external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation of leasehold land. Increase in the carrying
amount arising on revaluation of land are recognised, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in reserves in shareholders' equity.

Fair value of land is determined using the market comparable method, i.e., the valuations performed by
the valuer are based on active market sale prices, adjusted for difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific property. Refer Note 37.
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13
1.3.7.

13.8.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Property, plant and equipment (contd.)

Depreciation method, estimated useful lives and residual value:

Based on technical evaluation carried out, depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided,
on a pro-rata basis, on written down value method (WDV) over the estimated useful lives of the assets,
which equates to the useful lives prescribed under Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013, as follows:

Asset class Useful life (in years)
Building 30

Plant and machinery 15
Fumiture and fixtures — general 10
Furniture and fixtures — others 8

Office equipment 5
Computer equipment — Servers & Network 6
Computer equipment — Desktop, laptop and end-user items 3
Electrical installations 10

Vehicles 8

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount. These are included in profit or loss within other gains/ (losses).

Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost, net of accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The amortisation period and the amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
financial year. If the expected useful life of the asset is significantly different from previous estimates,
the amortisation period is changed accordingly.

Computer software are amortised over a period of 5 years.
Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an intangible asset are determined as the

difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and recognised as
income or expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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1.3
1.3.9.

1.3.10.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions
are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
Balance Sheet date. Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. A provision is recognized
if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations is
more probable than not. Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate
of the expenditure require to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period.

Employee benefits

a)

b)

Defined contribution plan

Contribution towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authorities, where the
Company has no further obligations. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Plan as
the Company does not carry any further obligations, apart from the contributions made on a
monthly basis.

Defined benefit plan

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan) covering eligible
employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a
lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of
employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of
employment. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit
method) by an independent actuary at the end of each year. Remeasurement gains and losses arising
from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. The Group Gratuity plan is funded with
Life Insurance Corporation of India, for all of the employees, under New Group Gratuity Cash
Accumulation Plan.

Compensated absences

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed within 12
months from the end of the year are treated as short-term employee benefits. The obligation towards
the same is measured at the expected cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional
amount expected to be paid as a result of the unused entitlement as at the year end.

Accumulated compensated absences, which are expected to be availed or encashed beyond 12
months from the end of the year are treated as other long-term employee benefits. The Company’s
liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) by an independent
actuary at the end of each year. Actuarial losses/gains are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which they arise.
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1.3.

1.3.11.

1.3.12.

Significant accounting policies (contd.)
Earnings per share

a) Basic earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:
e the profit attributable to owners of the Company
e by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year and excluding treasury
shares (Refer Note 32).

b) Diluted earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per share
to take into account:
o the after-income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

e the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off and presented in
lakhs with decimals as per the requirement of Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.

Critical estimates and judgements:
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income

and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

The areas involving critical estimate or judgement are:
Note 18 - Provision for employee benefit obligations
Note 39 and 1.2.1 — Going concern and impact of COVID-19

Note 34 - Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

Note 37 — Valuation of freehold and leasehold land

Note 38 - Leases
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Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and as stated)

§  Other financial assets
Security deposits
Other receivables
Total

6  Other tax assets
Taxes receivable
Total

7 Inventories

Food and beverages
Total

As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
8.46 12.66
0.58 -
9.04 12.66
17.45 22.93
17.45 22.93
= —1
1.70 1.00
1.70 1.00

Due to outbreak of COVID-19, Management has performed impairment assessment of all inventories and ascertained that there are no

items as at March 31, 2021 with shorter shelf-life which need to be written off,

As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
8 Trade receivables
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good 1.29 19.43
‘Which have significant increase in credit risk - -
Credit impaired 33.69 33.69
34,98 53.12
Less: Loss allowance (33.69) (33.69)
Total 1.29 19.43
Of the above, trade receivables from related parties
are as below:
Total trade receivables from related parties (Refer
1.62 1.78
Note 36)
Loss allowance - -
Net trade receivables 1.62 1,78
= ———
For receivables secured against borrowings, refer Notes 14 and 31.
The Company's exposure to credit and currency risks, and loss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed in Note 30.
9  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 254 1.73
Balances with banks
- in current accounts 4.71 15.03
Total 7.25 16.76
For cash and cash equivalents secured against borrowings, refer Notes 14 and 31.
10 Other assets
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current Non-current Current Non-current
Capital advances - 256.94 - 273.12
Prepaid expenses 4.62 - 1.76 -
Employee advances 041 - 0.61 -
Advances to suppliers 2.78 - 6.16 -
Balances with statutory authorities 9.42 = - -
Total 17.23 256.94 8.53 273.12
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(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and as stated)

11 Equity share capital

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Authorised
200,000 (March 31, 2020: 200,000) equity shares of Rs.100 each 200.00 200.00
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up
147,580 (March 31, 2020: 147,580) equity shares of Rs.100 each 147.58 147.58
147.58 147.58
Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Number of shares Amount in Number of shares Amount in
Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs
Equity shares
At the commencement of the year 147,580 147.58 147,580 147.58
Shares issued during the year - - - -
At the end of the year 147,580 147.58 147,580 147.58

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the
company’s residual assets on winding up. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The dividend
proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the Shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in
case of interim dividend. The voting rights of an equity shareholder are in proportion to his/its share of the paid-up equity share capital of
the company. On winding up of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the company, in
proportion to the number of equity shares held.

Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company (i.e., parent of the Group) and/or their subsidiaries/associates

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Number of shares Amount in Number of shares Amount in
Rs. lakhs Rs. lakhs
Equity shares of Rs. 100 each held by the Holding 147,580 147.58 147,580 147.58
Company
Particulars of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of a class of shares
As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Amount in % of total shares Amountin % of total shares
Rs. lakhs in class Rs. lakhs in class
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each held by
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited and its nominees 147,580 100% 147,580 100%

(Holding Company)

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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12 Reserves and surplus
Retained earnings
Securities premium
Capital redemption reserve
Total

Movement In reserves and surplus balances is as follows :

2) Retained earnings

Opening balance

Loss for the year

Redemption of preference shares

Ttems of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained earnings
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation
- Income tax relating to this item

Closing balance

b) Securities premium
Opening balance
Additions during the year
Deductions/adjustments during the year
Closing balance

c) Capital redemption reserve
Opening balance
Additions during the year
Deductions/Adjustments during the year
Closing balance

13 Other reserves

As at April 1, 2019

Additions during the year

Transfer to retained earnings

Income tax effect on revaluation of property, plant & equipment
As at March 31, 2020

Additions during the year

Transfer to retained eamnings

Income tax effect on revaluation of property, plant & equipment
As at March 31, 2021

Revaluation reserve

Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(1,444.87) (729.20)
1,366.29 1,366.29
10.00 10.00
(68& 647.09
(729.20) (150.92)
(716.91) (592.41)
- (10.00)
1.24 24.13
(1,444.87) (729.20)
1,366.29 1,366.29
1,366.29 1266.29
10.00 -
- 10.00
10.00 10.00
Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of  Revaluation Total
post employment reserve
benefit obligation
- 665.61 665.61
(24.13) - (24.13)
24.13 - 24.13
- 7.40 7.40
- 673.01 673.01
(1.24) 840.00 838.76
1.24 - 1.24
- (174.72) (174.72)
- 1,338.29 1,338.29

The Company has changed its accounting policy on measurement of lend from cost model to revaluation model w.e.f April 1, 2018. Land is
recognized at fair value based on valuations by external independent valuers performed on April 01, 2018 and subsequently remeasured on March 31,
2021. Consequently, any increase in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land are recognized, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in other reserves in shareholders' equity. Refer note 37.

Movement in revaluation reserve
Opening balance
Revaluation surplus during the year
Income tax effect
Closing balance

As at Asat
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
673.01 665.61
840.00 -
(174.72) 7.40
1,338.29 673.01




Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and as stated)

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

14 Non-current borrowings

Term loan
- From banks

Secured bank loans 677.23 635.26
Total 677.23 635.26
Current borrowings
Loans from banks -
Current portion of secured bank loans 208.43 180.58
Loans from shareholders
Unsecured loan from shareholders 1,702.99 1,365.49

1,911.42 1,546.07

Less: Amount included under 'Other financial liabilities' (208.43) (180.58)
Total current borrowings 1,702.99 1,365.49
Information about the Company's exposure to liquidity risk is included in Note 29.
Secured bank loans

a  During the year, the Company refinanced the existing term amounting to Rs. 1,069.20 lakhs from Yes Bank. The term loan is secured by way of (a)
An exclusive charge on land and building of Durshet and Kundalika owned by the Company (b) An exclusive charge on current assets and movable
fixed assets of the Company (c) A letter of Comfort from the Group and (d) A negative lien on the assets of the Company on which the bank is not
creating security and is repayable as :- 32 quarterly installments of Rs. 7.11 lakhs, 31 quarterly installments of Rs.0.27 lakhs, 30 quarterly installments
of Rs.2.09 lakhs, 29 quaterly installments of Rs. 0.57 lakhs, 28 installments of Rs. 0.51 lakhs, 27 quaterly installments of Rs 0.55 lakhs, 22 quarterly
installments of Rs.32.95 lakhs, 16 quaterly installments of Rs. 1.55 lakhs from the date of loan. Interest is payable at monthly rests at the rate of EBLR
+ 3.15% per annum. The loan amount outstanding as at year end is Rs. 716.96 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 805.38). Out of this, Rs. 193.10 lakhs
(March 31, 2020: Rs.179.44 lakhs) is repayable within 1 year and the balance amount of Rs.523.76 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 625.94) is repayable
after 1 year from the balance sheet date.

Further, the Company availed new working capital term loan of Rs. 165.00 lakhs from Yes Bank. The term loan is secured by way of (a) 100% credit
guarantee by National Credit Gaurantee Trust Company Limited (b) Charge on current assets financed through the additional WCTL to be created (c)
Second charge on land and building of Durshet and Kundalika owned by the Company (d) Second charge on current assets and movable fixed assets
of the Company and is repayable as :- 36 quaterly installments of Rs. 4.58 lakhs after moratorium period of 12 months from the date of loan. Interest
is payable at monthly rests at the rate of EBLR + 1% per annum. The loan amount outstanding as at year end is Rs.165 lakhs. Out of this, Rs. 13.75
lakhs is repayable within 1 year and the balance amount of Rs.151.25 lakhs is repayable after 1 year from the balance sheet date.

b Loan amounting to Rs, 6.60 Lakhs from HDFC Bank is secured by way of hypothecation of the underlying vehicles and is repayable in 48 equated
monthly instalments starting from the date of the loan (August 28, 2017) along with interest at the rate of 8.46% per annum.The loan amount
outstanding as at year end is Rs. 2.28 lakhs (March 31, 2020 : Rs. 3.65 lakhs). Out of this, Rs. 1.49 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs.1.26 lakhs) is
repayable within 1 year and the balance amount of Rs. 0.79 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 2.39 lakhs) is repayable after 1 year from the balance sheet

Unsecured loan from holding company
Unsecured loan amounting to Rs. 1,702.99 lakhs (March 31, 2020 Rs. 1,365.49 lakhs) outstanding as on March 31, 2021 from Holding Company -
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited, carries an interest rate of 13% and is repayable on demand.

Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2021 31 March 2020
Non-current borrowings 677.23 635.26
Current borrowings 1911.42 1,546.07
Net debt 2,588.65 2,181.33
Particulars Cash and cash Curre'nt Non-current Total

equivalents borrowings borrowings

Balance as at April 1, 2019 - 1,008.00 896.83 1,904.83
Proceeds from loans and borrowings - 357.49 45.32 402.81
Repayment of borrowings - - (134.13) (134.13)
Non-cash changes - Impact of effective interest amortisation - - 7.82 7.82
Balance as at March 31, 2020 - 1,365.49 815.84 2,181.33
Proceeds from loans and borrowings - 409.52 165.00 574.52
Repayment of borrowings - (72.02) (139.22) (211.24)
Non-cash changes - Impact of effective interest amortisation - - 4.51 4.51
Non-cash changes - Interest capitalised - - 39.53 39.53

Balance as at March 31, 2021 - 1,702.98 885.66 2,588.64




Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and as stated)
Asat As at
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
15 Trade payables

Dues to micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 40) - -
Dues to creditors other than micro and small enterprises 159.26 196.93
Total 159.26 196.93

The Company's exposure to liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 29.

16 Other financial liabilities

Non current

Security deposits 0.15 0.15

Current

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (Refer Note 14B) 208.43 180.58

Interest payable on unsecured loan 543.93 381.17

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 825 6.59

Creditors for capital expenditure 25.64 30.34
786.40 598.83

The Company's exposure to liquidity risks related to trade payables is disclosed in Note 29.

17 Other current liabilities

Salaries, wages, bonus and other employee payables 17.69 26.23

Contract liability - Advance received from customer 23.87 20.38

Statutory dues payable 6.25 7.44

Total 47.81 54.05

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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18 Provision for employee benefit obligations

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
Compensated absences 0.84 4.57 5.41 0.16 1.02 1.18
Gratuity 10.81 78.92 89.73 13.52 69.25 82.77
Total 11.65 83.49 95.14 13.68 70.27 83.95

(i) Compensated absences

Current compensated absences expected to be settled within the next 12 months

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020
0.84 0.16

(i) Post employment obligations

a) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees as per the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous service for a period of 5 years are
eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for
15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity plan is unfunded.

March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Current service cost 4.75 7.22
Interest expense 4.96 7.33
9.71 14.55

Total amount recognised in profit or loss

Remeasurements

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions - 10.63
(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions 7.28 (19.46)
Experience (gains)/losses (8.52) (15.30)
:I‘otal amount recognised in other comprehensive (1.24) 24.13)
income
Employer contributions 82.77 94.95
Benefit payments (1.51) (2.61)
Total 89.73 82.76

(ii) Defined contribution plans

The Company has also certain defined contribution plans, Contributions are made to provident fund in India for employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as
per regulations. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount
contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year towards defined contribution plan is Rs.
17.77 lakhs (March 31, 2020: Rs. 21.31 lakhs).

(iiii) Principal actuarial assumptions used in valuation of gratuity March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Discount rate 6.17% 6.33%

First year- 0%
Salary growth rate 3% thereafter- 4%
Attrition rate 11% 11%

Estimates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply
and demand in employment market.

(iv) Sensitivity analysis
The below table summarises the impact of movement in key assumptions on the present value obligation as at the balance sheet date:
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

Discount rate;
+ 100 basis points (4.86) 4.24)
- 100 basis points 5.38 472
Salary escalation rate:
+ 100 basis points 5.85 5.14
- 100 basis points (4.57) (3.94)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur and
changes in some of the assumption may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to the significant actuarial assumptions
the same method (present value of defined benefit obligation calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been
applied when calculating the defined benefit liability in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumption used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.



Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and as stated)

19 Deferred tax assets

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment
Land revaluation

Total deferred tax liabilities

Set-off of deferred tax liabilities pursuant to set-off provisions

Deferred tax liability as per the balance sheet
Net unrecognised deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets

Unabsorbed depreciation allowance and business loss carried forward

Property, plant and equipment
Provision for employee benefits

Set-off of deferred tax assets to the extent of deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax asset/ liability as per the balance sheet

Unrecognised deferred tax assets

Movement in deferred tax liabilities

At April 1, 2019
Charged/(credited):

- to profit or loss

- to other comprehensive income
At March 31, 2020
Charged/(credited):

- to profit or loss

- to other comprehensive income
At March 31, 2021

Movement in deferred tax assets

At April 1,2019
Movement during the year
At March 31, 2020
Movement during the year
At March 31, 2021

As at As at
March 31,2021 March 31,2020
534.44 369.59
534.44 369.59
149.97 121.35
384.46 248.24
532.38 330.81
48.29 41.96
26.22 28.66
(149.97) (121.35)
456.92 280.08
Property, platnt and | ond revaluation Total
equipment
0.88 376.99 377.87
(0.88) B (0.88)
- (7.40) (7.40)
- 369.59 369.59
9.87) (9.87)
174.72 174.72
- 534.44 534.44
Depreciation Provision for Unabsorbed depreciation  Property, plant Total
employee benefits allowance and business loss  and equipment
carried forward
- 46.98 242.19 0.51 289.68
28.66 (5.02) 88.62 (0.51) 111.75
28.66 41.96 330.81 - 401.43
(2.44) 6.33 201.57 205.46
26.22 48.29 532.38 - 606.89

<This space is left intentionally blank>



Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and as stated)

20
@)

21

22

23

24

25

Revenue from operations
Disaggregation of revenue:

On the basis of nature of goods or services:
Sale of products
Food and beverages

Sale of services

-Room rentals

- Campsites and activity camps
Total

On the basis of timing of transfer of goods or services

At a point in time
Over a period of time

Other income

Rent received

Profit on lease modification
Total

Cost of materials consumed

Inventory of materials at the beginning of the year

Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory of materials at the end of the year

Cost of food, beverages and operating supplies consumed

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity

Staff welfare expenses

Total

Finance cost

Interest on financial liabilities not measured at fair value through profit and loss
Interest on lease liability

Total

Depreciation

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right of use assets
Amortisation of intangible assets

Total

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
5248 179.50
95.75 190.67
33.91 507.77
182.14 877.94
86.39 687.27
95.75 190.67
182.14 877.94
- 0.27
21.90 0.48
21,90 0.75
1.00 247
36.47 151.86
1.70 1.00
35.77 153.33
185.05 336.91
22.10 27.01
13.93 15.74
0.62 440
221.70 384.06
272.78 24277
2.55 4.07
275.33 246.84
175.00 220.60
45.68 48.64
0.44 0.94
221.12 270.18
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26

27

Other expenses
Power and fuel
Rent
Repairs and maintenance:

- Building

- Others
Insurance
Rates and taxes
Guest supplies
Communication
Capital work-in-progress written off
Advances written off
Travel and tours
Legal and professional
Water charges
Payment to statutory auditors:

- Statutory audit

Travel and conveyance
Security charges
Sales commission
Sales promotion
Bank charges
Provision for doubtful debts
Printing and stationery
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Income tax expense

a) Amount recognised in profit or loss
Current tax

Current tax for the year

Total

Deferred tax expense

(Increase)/Decrease in deferred tax assets
Increase/(Decrease) in deferred tax liabilities
Total

Income tax expense

b) Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's Tax Rate:

Loss before tax

Tax expense / (income) computed at Indian Tax rate of 26% (PY : 26%)

Net tax effects of temporary differences which are (deductible)/disallowed in calculating taxable income

Tax impact of unrecognised tax losses
Income tax expense

¢) Tax losses

Amount of deductible temporary differences on which no deferred tax assets has been recognised
Unused tax losses for which no deferred tax assets have been recognised

Potential tax benefit at 26% (PY: 26%)

Tax losses on account of unrecognised deferred tax assets
Date of expiry to carry forward

31-Mar-29

31-Mar-28

31-Mar-27

31-Mar-26

31-Mar-25

Indefinite period to carry forward

Total

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020
3578 107.59
0.59 -
14.98 2791
427 20.42
10.33 9.50
19.29 21.73
1592 48.06
3N 7.01
9.57 -
15.65 -
- 62.57
23.79 2441
1.58 0.85
550 6.00
3.98 -
20.41 19.80
11.33 -
3.08 3818
434 19.09
0.54 33.69
0.84 192
0.63 0.79
206.11 449.52
(29.21) (32.83)
(9.87) -
(39.08) (32.83)
(39.08) (32.83)
(755.99) (625.24)
(196.56) (162.56)
196.56 162.56
1,470.80 793.57
38&1_ 206.33
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
627.51 -
403.07 353.36
158.06 158.06
107.15 107.15
175.00 175.00
721.03 583.42
2,191.82 1,376.99
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28 Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost

Financial assets

Trade receivables - - 1.29 - - 19.43
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1.25 - - 16.76
Loans - - 0.41 - - 0.61
Other financial assets - - 9.04 - - 12.66
Total financial assets - - 17.99 - - 49.46
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - - 3,140.83 - - 2,569.09
Trade payables - - 159.26 - - 196.93
Capital creditors - - 25.64 - - 30.34
Lease liability - - 10.76 E - 40.49
Total financial assets - - 3,336.49 - - 2,836.85

This summary includes all financial instruments valued based on the principles of Ind AS 109- Financial Instruments.

The camrying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other current financial liabilities and assets approximate
their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

The fair values of non-current borrowings are based on discounted cash flows using a current borrowing rate.

<This space is intentionally left blank>
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Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and as stated)
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31
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35

Segment information

Description of segments and principal activities

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief operating decision maker.

The Managing Director of the holding company has been identified as the chief operating decision maker of Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited who assesses the
financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic decisions. The Company has only one reportable segment as described below:

- Resort operations: This segment deals with business of resorts, campsites and activity camps.

Assets pledged as security Asat Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Current assets
Inventories 1.70 1.00
Trade receivables 1.29 19.43
Cash and cash equivalents 725 16.76
Other financial assets - -
Other current assets 17.23 8.53
Non-current assets
Freehold land (Revalued - Refer Note 37) 2,660.00 1,900.00
Buildings 969.45 742.49
Movable assets 132,93 192.12

Earnings per share

Profit attributable to the equity holders of the company used in calculating basic
eamings per share

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (in lakhs) 1.48 1.48
Basic/Diluted earnings per share (485.78) (401.42)

(71691) (592.41)

Commltments

Capital commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the reporting period but not recognised as liabilities is as follows:

Particulars

Property, plant and equipment 1.33 0.15

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
Contingent liabilities

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt:
Luxury tax related demand under appeal - 54.92
Capital management
Risk management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:
« safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
* maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.
Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Net debt (total borrowings net of cash and cash equivalents) divided by total ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet)

Total liabilities 3,140.83 2,562.09
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (7.25) (16.76)
Adjusted net debt 3,133.58 2,545.74
Total equity 1,417.29 1,467.70

Adjusted net debt to equity ratio 2.21 173



Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounts are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and as stated)

36 Related party transactions
(a) Parent entities

The Company is lled by following entity:
Ownership interest held by the Group
Name of entity Type
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fairfax Financial Holdings Limited, Canada Ultimnate holding company - -
Thomas Cook (India) Limited Intermediste holding company - -
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited Holding company 100% 100%
(b) Directors of the Company including Key management personnel
Mr. Vikram Dayal Lalvani
Mr. Ramesh Shanmugam
(c) Transactions with related parties
Transactions with related parties are as follows:
Year ended Year ended
March 31,2021  March 31,2020
Key management personnel compensation
Mr. Chinmay H Divekar (Chief operations officer) (Till July 3, 2019)
Short term employee benefits - 5.14
Post-employment benefits - -
Total compensation - 5.14
Sale of services
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 5.51 -
Thomas Cook (India) Limited - -
Divekar Wallstable Schnieder Precision Seals Pvt. Ltd. (Till July 3, 2019) - 0.15
Interest on borrowings
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 176.65 15144
Reimbursement of expenses
Pugmark Eco Tours Pvt Ltd (Till July 3, 2019) s 0.08
Loans and advances borrowed
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 409.52 365.49
Loans and advances repaid
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 72,02 8.00
Rent paid
Mr. Hari K Divekar (Till July 3, 2019) - 4.97
Mr. Chinmay H Divekar (Till July 3, 2019) - 2.73
Mr. Chaitanya H Divekar (Till July 3, 2019) - 1.36
Mrs. Swati Divekar (Till July 3, 2019) - 0.28
Mrs. Sonal Divekar (Till July 3, 2019) - -
(d) Outstanding balances a¢ the year end
The following balinces are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to transactions with related parties:
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Trade receivables
Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 1.56 -
Thomas Cook (India) Limited - -
Divekar Wallstable Schnieder Precision Seals Pvt. Ltd. - 0.50
Pugmarks Eco Tours Pvt. Ltd. (refer note below) 0.05 1.28
Other non-current assets - capltal advances (refer note below)
Mr. Hari K Divekar 186.76 186.76
70.18 70.18

Mr. Chinmay H Divekar



Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(All amounis are in Indian Rupees Lakhs except share data and as stated)
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37

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Related party transactions (continued)
Other non-current assets - prepaid rent (refer note below)

Mr. Hari K Divekar 63.38 84.50
Mr. Chinmay H Divekar 34.61 46.15
Mr. Chaitanya H Divekar 17.27 23.03
Mrs. Swati Divekar 8.93 4.79
Mrs. Sonal Divekar 0.05 0.05
Other current assets-prepaid rent (refer note below)

Mr. Hari K Divekar 21.12 21.12
Mr. Chinmay H Divekar 11.54 11.54
Mr. Chaitanya H Divekar 5.76 5.76
Mrs. Swati Divekar 1.20 1.20
Mrs. Sonal Divekar 0.01 0.01
Total receivable from related parties 422.42 456.87
Note: The above parties were related parties until July 3, 2019. The bal. ding disclosed above re bal. as at March 31, 2020 and March 31,
2021.

Short term borrowlings

Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 1,702.99 1,365.49
Other current financial liabilities - interes¢ payable

Sterling Holiday Resorts Limited 543.93 381.21
Total payable to related parties 2,246.92 1,746.70
Revaluation of land

During the previous financial year 2018-19, the Company has changed its accounting policy with respect to of frechold land from the cost model to

revaluation model with effect from April 1, 2018. Freehold land will be recognized et fair value based on periodic valuation done by external independent valuers.

A revalustion surplus will be recorded in OCI and credited to the asset revaluation reserve in equity. However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the
same asset previously recognized in profit or loss, the increase is recognized in profit and loss. A revaluation deficit is recognized in the statement of profit and loss,
except to. the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognized in the asset revaluation reserve.

Fair value of the land asscts was determined by an external independent valuer using the market comparable method, i.c., the valuations performed by the valuer are
based on active market sale prices, adjusted for difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific property.

During the cument year, the Company has recorded revaluation gain of Rs. 840 lakhs in OCI based on the fair value of frechold and leasehold land as at March 31,
2021 as determined by an external independent valuer. The cerrying amounts es at March 31, 2021 under cost and revaluation models ere given below:

Block of asset Revaluation model Cost model
Freehold land 3,759.98 2,920.00

38 Movement in right of use assets and lease liabflities s per Ind AS 116 Leases

As a lessee, the company leases many assets including land and building, vehicles

Right of use assets Land Building Total
Balance at April 1, 2019 - - -
Transition adjustment on adopting IND AS 116 - 46.11 46.11
Transfer from prepaid expense 25024 - 25024
Depreciation charge for the year (40.29) (8.36) (48.65)
Balance at March 31, 2020 209.95 37.75 247.70
Addition to right of use assets - 11.35 1135
Depreciation charge for the year (40.29) (5.39) (45.68)
Derecognition of right of uses assets P (34.81) (34.81)
Balance at March 31, 2021 169,66 8.90 178.56
Lease Liabilities Amount
Balance at April 1, 2019 -
Transition adjustment on adopting IND AS 116 46.11
Finance cost accrued during the period 4.07
Discharge of lease liabilities (9.69)
Balance at March 31, 2020 40.49
Deletions 25.97)
Finance cost accrued during the period 255
Discharge of lease liabilities (6.31)
Balance at March 31, 2021 10,76
Current 1.56
9.20

Non-current




Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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39 During the current year, the Company had adopted measures to curb the spread of infection in order to protect the health of its employees and ensure business
continuity with minimal disruption (including temporary closure of its resorts). The Company had reopened resorts in a phased manner since October 2020. However,
considering the significant increase in infection due to the second wave in India, certain States have adopted measures to control the spread of the pandemic. The
Company has again temporarily closed many resorts in April 2021.

The Management strongly believes that the operations would restart in a phased manner. However, the impact of COVID-19 on the economy continues to be uncertain
and the extent to which the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic will impact the Company’s financial performance including the Company’s estimates of future cash flows
and impairment of assets etc., is dependent on such future developments, the severity and duration of the pandemic, which cannot be predicted with certainty. The
Company has considered the context of the pandemic in determining judgements and estimates in applying the assumptions including those used to determine the future
cashflows. The impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to the future economic
conditions. Also refer note 1.2.1.

40 The Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 28 August 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small
Enterprises should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum in
accordance with the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (“the Act’). The disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such enterprises as at
31 March 2021 has been made in the financial statements based on information received and available with the Company. Further in view of the Management, the
impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material. The Company has not received any claim for
interest from any supplier as at the balance sheet date.

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(a) the principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at
the end of each accounting year

(b) the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day - -
during each accounting year;

(c) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but

beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and . .
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

(d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and - -

(¢) the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

As per our report of even date

Jor BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Nature Trails Resorts Private Limited
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